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of the deht. This is not a gond thing for
the community.
Hon. V. Hamersley: Do vou say that if

the man is sent to prison, it wipes out the
debt?

Hon. A, LOVEKIN: Yes, the whole of
the debt, once he goes lo prison. In order
to avoid that, we take advantage of another
section of the Aect, and order the man to find
security for payment of the money; and
then, if he does nol find the security, we
adjudge him gnilly of coutempt and he
may go to prison for six months.

Hon. E. H. Gray: And he still owes the
maney.

Hon. A. LOVEKIN: Yes. The mainten-
ance officers of the depariment do the very
best they ean, but it is very difficnlt to get
hold of these men, who travel about the ¢oun-
try and change their names. Here is the
State footing a bill of £6,000 odd in respect
of men who ought to be sapporting their
wives and children.

Hon. J. J. Holmes: You may be qualify-
ing 1o hecome ar industrial magistrate!

Hon. A. LOVEKIN: No; but I see these
cases. I have been dragged into them, as
into many things in my time. Those things
I gei into I take an interest in, and do the
best I can. It seems te me guite wronyz
ihat hecause a woman whose hushand is a
waster and runs away, applies for and oh-
taing a maintenance order which is not
complied with, and the husband goes away
for three or four years and perhaps 1is
living with another woman, the wife should
still be tied to that man. She cannot ap-
ply for a divoree by reason of the main-
tenance order, which the cowrt holds nega-
tives desertion. She is foreed -either to
seck refief from the Charities Depart-
ment or, as the evidenece taken before
the setect eommitiee shows, in some cases
lives with some other man and produces
itlemitimate children for whom no one is
responsible, and for whom the State has
to provide. It seems to me hetter
to allow the woman after three vears to
get a divoree, notwithstanding that there
is a maintenance order in existence which
has not been complied with. If the main-
tenance order is complied with, of course
there is no desertion.  This Bill seeks to
make it desertion if the maintenanee order
has heen in existence for three vears and
there has been no compliance. The other
Honse agreed to that prineciple, and T do
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not think any member here will object to il.
I move—
That the Bill be now read a second time.

On motion by the Chief Secretary, debate
adjourned.

BILLS (1}—FIRST READING,
1, Day Baking.
2, Land Drainage.
3, Metropolitan Water Supply, Sewerage
and Drainage Aet Amendment.
4, Primary Products Marketing.

BILL—FORESTS ACT AMEND-
MENT.

Assembly’s Message.
Message from the Assembly received and

read, notifying that it had agreed to the
Council’s ameéndment.

House adjourned at 9.8 p.m.
Tcgislative EHgeaembly,
Wednesday, 21st October, 1925,
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QUESTION—POLICE CONSTABLE,
HALL'S CREEK.

Mr. COVERLEY asked the Minister for
Justice: Is it a fact that the police constable
in charge at Hall's Creek has been absent
from town for the past month for the pur-
pose of acting as guide to an explorer named
Terry?
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The MINISTER FOR JUSTICE replied:
In August, 1921, arrangements were made
at the request of the Manager of Billiluna
Station, for Constable Flinders, of Hall's
Creek, to periodically patrol to that station.
As Mr, Terry was proeceding via Billiluna to
Godfrey's Tank the opportunity was taken
to pernit the econslable to make the patrol at
the same time,

QUESTION--SEAMEN'S DISPUTE,
POLICE PROTECTION.

Hen. Sir JAMES MITCHELL asked the
Minister for Juslice: 1, Does the following
sentence, contained in an interview with the
Minizter published in the “West Australian®”
of the 20th, express the decision of the Gov-
ermueent in this matter: “Whenever police
protection was sought, and the erew were
willing to werk the boat, it had always been,
and would always be, fortheoming? 2, If
sp, on what ground has this decision been
arrived at?

The MINISTER FOR JUSTICE replied:
1, Yes. 2, On the ground that if the erew
is willing to take the vessel to sea and police
proteetion is asked for the purpose of pre-
venting disorder, it will be provided.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE.

On motion by Mr. Richardson, leave of
ahsence for two weeks granted to the member
for Trwin (Mr. Maley) on the ground of
urgent private business.

BILL—NEWCASTLE SUBURBAN LOT
88,

Introduced by the WMinister for Lands
and read a first time.

MOTION—BILLS OF SALE ACT
AMENDMENT BILL.

Select Committee—As to publication of
evidence.

MR. DAVY (West Perth) [435]: I
niove-—

That in view of the conflicting natnre of
the evidence given before the Select Commit-
tee appointed to inquire into the Bills of Sale
Act Amendment Bill, so much of the Standing
Orders rclating to the publication of evidence
before Seleect Committees be suspended to per-
mit of the evidence being published in the

[ASSEMBLY.]

Press before the presentation of the Commit-
tec’s report to this House.

1 am by this motion endeavouring to fall into
line with the unanimous wishes of the mem-
bers of the Select Committee. The evidence
called and given to that Committee will, |
am sure, when it is read by hen. members,
satisfy them very fuily as to the justifieu-
tion of referring this matter to a seleet com-
mittee, 1t is guite extraordinary that ther-
oughly responsible people have expressed en-
tirely different views as to the advisabiliiy
or otherwise of amending the Bills of Sale
Act, In view of that the Commiltee desire
that the fullest puoblicity should be given
1o the evidence, with a view fo any other
person who may desire to express his opinion
on the matter Leing able to do so after per
using the statements that have been made
by other witnesses.

THE MINISTER FOR LANDS {Hon
W. C. Angwin—North-East Fremanile)
[437]: 1 intend to oppose the motion.
When I first became a member of this House
[ thought it wise that inquiries by seleet
committees should be thrown open to the
Press. Of late, however, I have feli that it
is a dangerous proceding to suspend the
Standing Orders for that purpose. A select
committee is suppnsed to take evidence in
camera, and that evidence is subsequently
presented with the report for the informa-
tion of members, who may then form their
opinions upon that which is laid before
them. There is always a liability, if the
proceedings are open to the Press, that wit-
nesses will not give the evidence they other-
wise would give. I have been supported
in that view of late vears by most hon.
members of this House. On the lasi two
occasions when a motion of this nature was
moved, the House objected to the suspension
of the Standing Orders. T think they should
be adhered to, so that persons who give evi-
dence may know heforehand that their state-
ments will not be published except for the
information of members of the House.
An inquiry of this sort is not for
the public in general. I is con-
ducted to enahle membhers to form an opinioun
upon the subject of the inquiry. The pro-
cedure adopted on the last two or three ocea-
sions should be adhered to, It is becoming
a common practice for seleet eommittees to
ask that the Standing Orders should be sus-
pended for this purpose. T hope the House
will deal with this motion in the same way
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that it did with similar motions in
1923 and 1924, The evidence should
be taken in camera, and I can see

no reason for making it public. There is
ne occasion for the Press to be invited to
comment upon the evidence that is tendered,
for members are quite able to form their own
opinions without that. It is possible that
the publication of the evidence may draw
some members away from the principal
points upon which they desire to form an
opinion. The select committee appointed to
inguire into the establishment of the Perth
markets put forward the same request, and
met with a refusal. The same thing may
be said of the select eommittee appointed
to inquire into soldier setilement. Only un-
der special cirenmstances should the House
aliow these Standing Orders to be suspended.
They were framed not only for the purpose
of protecting seleet committees, but of pro-
tecting withesses. T cannot see that this
1s an occasion when the publication of the
evidence should be permitted. The subject
is purely of & private nature, and the evi-
dence should be submitted and the report
furnished in the ordinary way. I hope the
House will not agree lo the motion,

HON. SIR JAMES MITCHELL (Nor-
tham) [4.42): It is true that we have on
other oceasions resisted wotions for the
suspension of the Standing Orders, but I
doubt if they were parallel cases with this
one. This select committee is dealing with
legislation, and the ecommittee was ap-
pointed in order that the people concerned
might give information with regard to pro-
posed legislation of vital importance to
them.  This is quite different from ap-
pointing a select commitie to deal with re-
turned soldiers, I do not suppose anyone
who appeared hefore this select committee
would object to the publication of his evi-
dence. In a few days the whole question
will be discussed by the House, and a ecopy
of the evidence will be placed before every
member and will then beecome public. I do
not know that any objection, therefore,
should be raised to the evidence that has
been taken, being published now. It may
be contended that witnesses shonld have
heen informed that the evidence would be
published before they gave it. That cer-
tainly would have been better. Tn the
opinion of members of the select committee
it is advisable that the public should know
what evidence has been given. Undoubtedly
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it is evidence that will influence the House
when we come to deal with this particalar
legislation. 1 could understand the Min-
ister objecting to the suspension of the
Standing Orders in other cases, but not in
this one. I do not suppose it would be
hecessary to give the names of the witnesses.

The Minister for Lands: There is no-
thing to stop it when the evidence is made
public.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: The
Minister knows that the evidence is taken
by the “Hansard” staif and the evidenece
could only be supplied to the Press from
their reports. The names, therefore, could
be omitted.

The Minister for Lands: But the Press
representatives can attend if the motion is
agreed to.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: They
have not been present to date and the aevi-
dence referred to has been given already.

The Minister for Lands: TUnder our
Standing Orders newspaper reporters are
not allowed to be present at select com-
mittee proceedings.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: That is
so. The only means by whieh the evidence
can be supplied is from the “Hansard” re-
ports. The Press represeniatives could be
excluded from the proeeedings of the com-
mittee if deemed advisable during the tak-
ing of evidence. I can understand the Min-
ister objecting to abbreviated reports of
evidence of this deseription,

The Minister for Lands:
thing has been done.

Hon. 8ir JAMES MITCHELL: That is
s0. Such a publication might easily lead
to wrong impressions being gathered. If
a reporter were expected to condense into
two inches evidence that shounld take 20
inches to cover, a wrong impression could
eagily be created. However, the evidence
is not very lengthy and it could be supplied
in full. Evidence taken before a Royal
Commission i3 published.

The Minister for Lands: We know that.

Hon, Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Well,
I am telling you that it is so.

The Minister for Mines: The hon. mem-
ber is always telling us what we know.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: I counld
not tell the Minister anything.

The Minister for Mines: That is so. You
conld not tell me anything.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL. It is not
in the mind of the Minister to be informed.

That sort of
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It is utterly impossible to tell him any-
thing. On the other hand, of course, it is
possible to inform the Minister for Lands
from time to time. 1 hope the House will
agree to meet the wishes of the seleet cowm-
milttee.

THE MINISTER FOR MINES (Hon.
M. ¥. Troy—>Mt. Magnet) [4.48]: 1 hope
the Committee will not agree to the motion.
T will tell the Leader of the Opposition
something that probably he does not know.
Evidence given before a Royal Commission
is privileged, but that fendered to a seleet
committee is not privileged, and therein is
the distinction, Becanse evidence given be-
fore a select committee is not privileged, it
may lead people who give information into
serious tronble. I know what I am speaking
about, and I know that what I say is cor-
rect. 1 was at one time the chairman of a
select committee.

Hon. . Taylor: I do not think your
nmemory is too good on that point.

The MINISTER FOR MINES: Yes, it
is. The select committee I refer to was ap-
pointed to inquire into the sweating condi-
fions under which labour was employed in
faetories.

The Minister for Lands: The evidence
hefore that select eommittee was not pub-
lished.

The MINISTER TOR MINES: It
would bave been published, but for the
advice given me hy the officers of the
Crown Law Department, They advised

me not to publish if, because it was not
privileged and some of the statements
might have been libellous and might pos-
sibly have led to others taking legal action.
Although my action in the matter was mis-
understood in the eountry, T refrained from
publishing the evidence on the adviee ten-
dered to me by the Crown Law authorities
on the ground that the evidence was not
privileged. If the advice tendered at that
time was sound, I have not been informed
that it has been since considered otherwise.
If that is still the opinion of the Crown
Law authorities, we should not agree to the
motion,

Hon. Sir James Mitehefl: Did you suh-
mit the evidence to the Crown Law Depart-
ment ?

The MINISTER FOR MINES:
and I asked for advice.

Mr. Davy: Did you not commit a breach
of Standing Order 352%

Yes,

[ASSEMBLY.]

The MINISTER FOR MINES: We are
not discussing that point. )

The Minister for Lands: I have always
thought that that evidence should have been
published, beeause it would have stirred up
the country.,

The MINISTER FOR MINES : The
Attorney General at the time advised me
strongly not to publish the evidence. I
hope the motion will not be agreed to.

HON. G. TAYLOR (Mt. Margaret)
[4.50]: The memory of the Minister for
Mines has not served him well. There
may be a confusion in his mind Dbefween
|vinting and publishing.  We know that
evidence before a select committee is re-
ported by members of the “Hansard” staff,
and under Standing Order 352 it is not to
ha printed by anyone nntil presented to this
House. On the other hand, the evidence is
printed by the Government Printer from
the typewritten reports of the “Hansard”
staff. Copies are banded over to members
of a scleet committee so that they may read
the evidence given from day to day, thus
enabling them to become more aequninted
wiih the cvidence submitted to them. That
evidence, linwever, is not puoblished in the
Press. That is where the Minister has con-
fused |rinting with publishing. On oeca-
sions the maver of n motion for the appoint-
meut of a select committee has moved for
the tabling of a (ypewritten eopy of the
cvidenee only, thus saving the expense of
printing. The argument has been advanced
{kat a motion in favour of the printing of the
evidence would Jead to a discussion regard-
ing the eost of printing. As hon. members
know, the typing of reports does not cost
much compared with the printing of the
cvidenee. However, T think it would be a
dangerous proposal to agree to if the evi-
dence were published in the Press from day
to day. Witnesses would read the cvidence
prior to appearing before the select com-
mitlee, and when they came forward the
ideas they propounded would be built up on
evidenee that had been tendered by others.
We might as well expect all witnesses in a
court of law to he present when the evi-
dence of all other witnesses was heing ten-
dered. Members of a seleet committee ex-
amine witnesses to the best of their ability,
without prejudice, and with a mere desire
to get at the boiton of the subjeet under con-
sideration. I see no extenunating ecireum-
stanees regarding the present applieation,
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and no reason has been advanced why we
should suspend the Standing Orders re-
ferred to. 1 have always combated such a
motion, and my long experience in connec-
tion with Parliamentary affairs merely
serves to confirm the imporfance of Stand-
ing thder 332, At one time I was of {he
opinion that all such evidence should be
published in the Press. but I am not of
that opinion now,

MR. HUGHES (East Perth) {1.54]: As
Lon. members are aware, 1 tried to kill the
Bills of Sale Act Amendment Bill at the
second reading stage. When it was referred
fo a s=elect eommittee, however, 1 agreed
that there was some mneed for provision
being made in our exisling legislation fo
cover the position. To my mind the provi-
sitms tn the Bill were foo drastie. The mem-
bers of the seleet committee were entrusted
by the House with the duty of inquiring
inta a technieal subjeet. The evidence ten-
dervd as io the resulis to be expected tfrom
the [ill and the best method of achieving
the object of those who desire the Bill to
he passed, without injuring others who
should be protected, has heen of a
conflicting  nature. I agree with the
Standing Order prohibiting generally the
publication of evidence before a select
ecominittee. Surely, however, that Stand-
ing Order is not to be taken as of cast iron!
Surely it is not to De regarded as one
from whichk no departure is to be made,
notwithstanding cireumstances that may
arise! This is a speeial ease, because ex-
rerts have appeared before the select com-
mittee and expressed their opinions, and
these opinions have shown a distinet diver-
sitv. The committee asked for suggestions
from witnesses as to the best means of
achieving the desires of those seeking the
passage of the Bill. One witness has made
n suggestion, and he was followed by an-
other witness, who put up a counter sug-
wostion. The committee are not in a posi-
tion to eross-esamine the first witness as
to the practicability of the suggestion prof-
fered by the second witness.

The Minister for Lands: You can always
recall a witness.

Mr. HUGHES: But if we reecall a wit-
ness and put the suggestion to him, we then
get merely the opinion of {wo individuals
on that point. The committee are dealing
with a subject that is doubly diffieult. On

(53]
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one side we have people who are lenders,
and they suggest that bills of sale that are
unregistered should be absolulely invalid
1t is impossible to get the point of view of
the borrewers, who are convenienced by the
tacilities regarding unregistered bills of
sale. People of that deseriplivn would not
come forward and tell us that they had had
trausnctions with unregistered bills of sale,
and that the legislation would work a hard-
ship. Thus, the committee have to work on
ex parte statements.

The Minister for Lands: Do you think
the bhorrowers will come forward if they
know that their statewents are to be pub-
lished in the Press?
© Xr. HUGHES: We find that they will
not cvome furward when their siatements are
tv be made econfidentially. If the inquiries
of the committee are to be limited, 1 think
I am right in saying that it will be the
death knell of the Bill. The committee de-
sire 1o secure information not only from
the legal and commercial fraternities, but
alsu from wembers of the general public as
to the probable effects of the Bill.

The Minister for Lands: And do you
think the publieation of the evidence in the
Press will get over that difliculiy?

Mr. ICGHES: A resume of the evidence
will interest people who at present know
nothing of the Bill. If certain people en-
gaged in the primary industries saw in the
rewspaper to-morrow a statement thab there
was before the House a Bill likely to prevent
them from pgetting eredits with which to
carry on their industry, they weuld sit up
and take nolice.

The Minister for Lands: They do not get
iach assistanee without a mortgage.

Mr, HUGHES: The evidence is that a lot
of financial assistance is given on the strength
uf unregistered bills of sale. It would be a
revelation to those people to read that there
wus before ihe House a measure likely to in-
lerfere with the usuval practice, As to the
point raised by the Minister regarding the
evidence not being nn oath, and the danger
of involving people in the eonsequences of
ziving evidenee, the evidence is entirely on
a question of business proecedure and law,
and there is no danger of any witness bring-
ing himself into trouble. Should there be
brought before the select committee evidence
at all doubtful in that respeet, surely the
House can trust the committee to use some
diseretion in publicity! But it is not ex-
pected that there will he any evidenee that
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eould not be published. The cases published
will be simply quoted as eases, withouf names
of persons or firms. In supporting the mo-
tion I am speaking for my colleague mem-
ber of the select comumittee on this side of
the House. On this oceasion the House,
without setting up a precedent, would be
dquite justified in suspending the Standing
Urders to meet the wishes of the members
of the select committee.

MP. DAVY (West Perth—in reply)
5.3]: 1t is dificult for a new wember to
spport a proposition that is eondemned by
some of the most experienced Parliamen-
tarians. I suggest that a few of those have
become a little conservative through long
sitting in the House.

The Minister for Lands: That is very
Landy for protection somelimes; you always
hiarness an old horse beside a young one.

Mr. DAVY: The old horse is all right
until an cwmergency arises, when perhaps you
wunt the spring of youth. But spart from
{lippancy, spesking only as one capable of
reading Standing Order 352 and apprecing-
ing the arguments of the House on this
(uestion, if ever there could be an instanco
wiere the Standing Order should be sus-
pended for this purpose, it is the instance
Lefore us now. Jirstly, the sov-called evi-
Cenee before the seloet committece is nob
evidence at all, but argument. We have had
cue wan stating faets that we already know
and then saying that in his view if we do this
sueh and sueh will happen. It is expert
opinion argued. The ideal way to have this
watter thrashed out would be per medium of
siraight out argument between various peo-
ple, but that cannot be.

Hon. G. Taylor:
ference.

Mr. DAVY: Something like it. But as
T say, that is impossible. We felt that we
ought to have all the views expressed and in-
ferences drawn, and opinions advanced and
j.ropositions put before us earefully checked
hy one skilled man, and our original inten-
tion was to hand a copy of all the evi-
dence to ane of the Crown Law officers.
Tiowever, under Standing Order 352 we can-
not do that. We may not disclose or pnb-
lish to anybody the evidence ziven. The
simplest way to get over that, we thought,
was to publish the evidence in the news-
paper, in which event it would be available
to the Crown Law Department.

Then you want a con-

[ASSEMBLY.]

The Minister for Lands: That would be
ro good, for ne lawyer would form an
opinion on evidence published in the Press.

Mr. DAVY: Al all events, that would
give us the right to hand a copy of the evi-
cenee to the Crown Law Department, which
wg gannot do now, The alternative to that
is that we should get a Crown Law oflicer
bhefore us and put to him what we remem-
bered of the evidence—~for we could not hand
1i to him—and say, “So and so suggested
this; what do vou think of it

The Minister for Lands: Nobody would

vlject to that.

Mr, DAVY : But the Standing Order pro-
seribes it, Even the Minister for Lands will
admit that there may be an instance in which
the Standing Order should be suspended in
vrder that the evidenee might be published.
LRut we cannot even show the evidence to the
Minister for lLands, else he wounld agree
readily that ihat evidence ought to be pub-
lished. There is no possibility of the ills sug-
gested by the Minister for Mines, because,
as [ say, the evidence is all opinion as to
what may happen it certain things be done.
So there ean he mo danger to anybody
through the publication of the evidence. I
lir,pe the House will agree to the métion.

Question put and negatived.

BILL—JURY ACT AMENDMENT.
Council’'s Amendments.

Messagze reccived from the Council notify-
ing that it had agreed to the Bill subjeet to
amendments.

BILLS (1)—THIRD READING.
1, Primary Products Marketing.
2, Dav Baking.
3, Land Drainage.
4, Metropolitan Water Supply, Sewerage
and Drainage Act Amendment.
Transnitted to the Council.

MOTION—ABATTOIRS ACT.
To Disallow Regulations.
Debate resumed from 14th Oectoher on
the following motion hy Mr. Mann—

That the regulations of the State Abattoirs
and Saleyards (Metropolitan District) pub-
lished in the ‘‘Government Gazette’’ of Tth
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August, 1925, and laid on the Table of the
House on Tucsday, Sth September, 1923, be
disallowed.

THE MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE
(Tlen. M. ¥. Troy—Mt. Magnet) [5.14]: 1
have admiration for the way in which the
member tor Perth (Mr. Mann) addressed
himselt io the subject, hecause so far as he
¢ould, with the information at his disposal,
he dealt with the subject very fairly. Bai
J hope that when T shall have given the
departmental view of the matter and sub-
mitted the faets as we understand them,
the lion. memher will see his way clear to
withdraw (he motion. The member for
Cuildford (Hon. W. D. Johnson) was quite
vovvert when he said that T 2ave an under-
standine that within a reasorable time T
would revise the regmlations if 1 found
the charges oppressive. When he came to
me with the svggestion that he should move
‘o have the regulations disallowed, I told
hin that the butchers knew of my promise
and that they had agreed with the sugges-
tion. I think it has since been suggested that
the time for making the revision has
elapsed. but T point out that that did not
eoncern the butchers, because they ap-
proached members to 'move for the dis-
allowance of these regulations long before
the time had elapsed. FEven though a
month has elapsed since the regunlation:
came Into force, the time lias not been
suflicient to enable the depariment to et
together the information necessary to
enable me to consider the facts, to-
gether with the costs of and the receipts
from operations. That matter is now in
the hands of an accountant whom T in-
siructed to prepare full information for

me. When I have considered the fig-
ures pot up by the accountantt 1T
shall, if the necessity arises, revise

the charges now operating. The promised
reviston of the rates is not the outcome
of the motion moved in this House, nor is
it the result of any agitation hy the
butchers: it is the fulfilment of a promise
that T gave to the butchers themselves.
The metropolitan abattoirs were first
orzanised under Government control in
1915, and I admit that the charges for
slaughtering were then 8s. for cattle. The
Government did the slaughtering and the
cleaning. But conditions have changed
materially, not only in Western Australia
but all over the world, since 1915. What
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eould be accomplished for 8s. then could
not be aecomplished for 13s. now. Costs
everywhere have altered and conditions
have heen revolutionised.

AMr. Mann: The only increase in this
instance is labour.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICCLTURE:
In those days the costs of fuel, power and
evervthing else were more favourable.
Until last year the slaughtering for the
wetropolitan aven was confined to the Mid-
land Junction abatteirs, while at JFremantle
the slaughtering was done at the Anchor-
uge abattoire, the Union abattoirs, and the
North Fremantle abattoirs. The premises
owned by the West Australian Meat Ex-
ports Co., Ltd., Fremaunile, were rented by
the Mitehell Government in order to con-
centrate the work there. The then (iov-
ernment took over the works at a rental of
£7,000 n year for a term of 10 years. 1 am
inelined to think that their aetiov in the
cireumstances wns a proper one.

Mr. Mann: The Government have wade
a good deal by it.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
We are nof in a position to say whether it
is a good deal or a bad deal. In those
premises the Government have a sum of
£110,000 involved, and it was due to them
to look affer the asset in order to secure
their money and help the company to win
through in the purpose for which it was
initiated. T do not say anything ahout the
business aspect, because as yet it is too
early to make any statement, hut I eon-
sider that the object of the (iovernment
was quite a proper one. Before that time
a demand was raised for better eonveni.
ences at Midland Junection. Or one oececa-
sion A strike nceurred amongst the wmaster
butehers of Midland Junetion beeause of
the want of aeccommodation—it was when
the Hon. C. Baster was Honorary Minister
for Agriculture—and the Minister had to
go out to the abattoirs and arrange to
effect certain temporary improvements,
There lad been a demand from time to
time for additional econveniences and b
last the demand was met. Preliminary
arrangements had alzo been made to put
a sum on the Estimates to increase the
aecommodation at Midland Junction and
provide the conveniences that the mastar
butehers considered were absolutely neces-
sary for their business. As a resnlt there
has been expendsd on the improvements
approximately £42,000. When lhe actual
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cost is assessed, it may prove to be a few
pounds moure. This expenditure was in-
curred in providing ample slaughtering
accommoclation, which has heen more than
duplicated, provision for refrigeration,
hanging space in the slaughtering hall and
the chilling room, and in addition to the
other glaughtering halls, a pig slaughtering
hall has been provided and an extension
has been made of the by-products house.
We have also provided up-to-date soales at
a cost of £400. T think it is admitted that
the acecommodation at Midland Jonetion is
second to none in the Commonwealth, and
that it is very suitabla for our purposes.

Mr. Mann: Youn have provided power
enough for many years to eome,

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTGRE:
We cannot say that; but in the iay-out we
Jave provided for the waking of fnrther
extensions

Mr. Mann:
pD\VBl‘.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
Without inconveniencing the present ar-
rasgements or altering the present premises.
While the improvements were being made
at Midland Junction, (ke killing was ¢oncen-
trated at Fremantle. The Perth and Mid-
land hutehers were sent to IFremanile, and
in the interval the department provided at
Fremantle chilling aceommodation, varding
and water for the stoek, free of charge to the
butchers,

My, Mann: I said that.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURL:
It is a matter of regret and disappeintment
to me that the butehers, for whom so much
was done, are the only men vesponsible for
the prescnt complaint. The agitalion has
been largely initiated by the butchers who
received that hiz concession at Fremantle
extending over a term of nearly 12 months.
While the abattoirs showed a loss of £5,000
last year, I do not admii that the whole of
that loss resulted from the conveniences we
provided for the metropolitan, Fremantle
and Midland butchers. It has been asserted
by them that the £5,000 loss was incurred in
that way, but even i it was, they have
shown themselves utterly ungrateful by poe-
Leting that £53,000 without giving any consid-
eration to the consuming publie, and by now
charging the Government with profiteering
by reason of the charges imposed under the
new regulations. The attitude of the buteh-
ers is utterly inconsistent and cannot be jus-

Without iuecreasing your
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tiied. There was a loss of £5,000 on the
abattoirs last year.

Mr, Mann: The free services you gave
the butchers last year only compensated for
the inconvenienee to which they were put.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICCLTURLE:
And to-day they have to pay for those con-
veniences at Midland Junetion. The buteh-
ers admit that they wust pay something for
the improvements, and the mewber for
Perth has not objceted to their being
charged something for the additional ¢onven-
iences. The hutehers, however, are not pre-
pared to admit that the conveniences they
enjoyed last ycar free of charge were of any
value whatever to them., They give the Gov-
crnment no credit for having done that for
them.

Hon. Sir Jmoes Mitchell : What would be
your extra cost of handling?

The MINISTER FOR AGRICUGLTURE:
I shall give those figures later.

Hon. Sir James Mitchell: That is what
you ought to cover,

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
On the completion of the Midland abattoirs,
the Perth and Midland butehers returned (o
Midland Junction, while the slaughtering for
Fremantle is now concentrated at the West
Australian Meat Export Company’s prem-
ises. We have closed {own operations ot the
Anchorage and Union abaltoirs, which were
rented from Mr. Copley and from Messrs.
Copley and Patterson, respectively, and we
have also ceased operations at our own abat-
toirs at North Fremantle, The whole of the
Fremantle slanghtering, which is about a0
per cent. of the metropolitan kill, is now
econcentraled at the West Australian Meat
Export Works, Fremantle. At Fremantle
the hutehers enjoy similar privileges and eon-
veniences to those who kill at 3lidland
Junection. The department’s slaughtering
operations at Midland Junetion were com-
menced on the 17th Angusi last, but even
then the new rates did not apply. The
butchers started at the old rates, and the
new rates were not imposed until the Tth
September. TFor three weeks, therefore, the
butchers had the advantage of the additional
aceommodation and facilities at the «old
rates. As we have now reached the 2lst
October, it will be realised that the new rates
have operated for only a few weeks over that
period during which the hutehers enjoyed
the advantages of the new system at the old
rates. T admit that at first sight the new
rates appear to be very high. The rates
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are 125, for caltle, 2s. for sheep and 3=
for pigs, but in all the arguments advanced
by the butehers, they have endeavoured to
lead the community to believe that the in-
crease for cattle is 12s. per head.

Mr. Mann: No, they have not.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
As a fact, during the whole of the conlrov-
ersy in the Press, the bufchers made it ap-
pear that the added eost was 12s. per head.

Mr. Mann: I did not do that.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
And the butchers have made it appear that
they were compelled lo pass that 12s. on 1o
the consumer. The member for Perth knows
it is not so; he knows that the increase is

the difference belween the old rate and the

12s. rate. Had the butchers confined them-
selves to dealing with the real increase, there
would not have beep very much in their ar-
guments,

Mr. Mann: There is an increase of 9s.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
The memher for Perth produced certain
figures by which he endecavoured to con-
vince the House that the profit made by the
Government on these charges would amount
to £20,970. I do not blame the hon. mem-
ber in respect of those figures, because they
are fignres which he could not get except
from interested persons, and he has had no
opportunity to learn the departmental
standpoint, Thosce figures were put inte
his hands by the butchers, and I do mol
blame him if it is shown that the figures
are most unreliable.

Hon. Sir James Midehell: Can vou show
where the figures are not eorrect?

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
Of course I ean. The figures are absolutely
preposterous,  The CGovernment eould not
possibly make the profit which has been
suggested, The hon. member’s figures were
based on the kill for this month, October.
If the figures were correct, the argument
would not be fair, because this month’s
kill represents the peak month for sheep.
The ceost of killing a bullock is 12s, and
the cost of killing a sheep is 2s. Taking
the average sheep at 40 lbs. and the average
bulloek at 600 lhs——

Mr. Mann: That is not the weight of a
bullock. )

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
That is how the butehers work it out.
On that basis it takes 15 sheep to make one
bullock. For 15 sheep, at 2s. per head, the
department get 30s., as against 12s. for a
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bullock representing the same weight of
meat. During February, March, April, and
May there would be very few sheep in the
market and the killing would be practically
confined to cattle at 125. per head. 1 have
here a diagram showing the killings for the
various months. In Qctober, 1924, 26,193
sheep were killed; but in Jupe, 1924, there
were only 13,883 -heep killed. In September
ol last year the kitlings of =i +op weve 21,000,
in August 21,553~ .

Mr. Mann: [ast year was a drought
year.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
In October of ‘ast year 26,197 shecep were
killed, in November 18987, in December
14,937, in the following January 17.768, and
in February—here the number went right
down—14,133. During February, Mareh,
April, May, and June the number of sheep
slaughtered at the metropolitan abattoirs was
under 15,000 per month.

Mr. Mann: You have taken last year,
which was a drought year, as you know.
Moreover, we had frozen meat all the year.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
The member for Perth eannot mislead mem-
bers who know anything about agricultural
conditions.. We are all aware that sheep
are always scarce during February, March,
April, May, and June. I will {ell the member
for Perth that if he does not know it. If one
holds sheep till May or June, one can always
realise a good price for them, beennse during
thuse months there are very few sheep in the
market. Members opposite should know that,
hecanse any person in the couniry who has a
few sheep to sell knows it. It is a peculiarity
of our stock conditions, and one wlhich always
¢btains, Tt has never been otherwise, except
ifter the breaking of a drought on the Mar-
chison, when conditions have quickly faitened
stock for the market. T can show that in the
months when sheep are scarce, cattle are
high. The member for Perth had better
not stress the fact that we had frozen meat
last year, because, if he does, the inference
is against him. As much frozen meat took
the place of mutton as of beef.

Mr. Mann: Of course; and that is my
point.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
But the hon. member is not making his
point properly. He cannot apply the point
against this scale, hecauze the seale deals
with slanghtering, and not with the quan-
tity of meat sold. The scale shows that in
October, when the number of sheep slaugh-



1467

tered is high, the number of cattle slaugh-
tered s low, and that in May and June,
when the number of sheep slaughtered is
low, the number of catile slaughtered is
high.  Therefore, sinee the Government get
more money for the slaughtering of sheep
than fYor that of cattle, it is not a fair
thing to base an estimate on a month when
the number of she¢p slaughtered is at its
peak. The hon. member has erred in mak-
g the comparison. I do not blame him
for his error, because the information he
had was given him by interested parties,
Let me give an instance of how the hon.
member was misled, On his own figures,
this month the fees collected by the Govern-
ment for the slaughtering of sheep exceeded
those paid for the slaughtering of ecattle by
£7,5300, That is evidence, on his own figures,
that he took the peak month for sheep and
made it the basis for the whole year. It is
only fair in a business calenlation to base
receipts and expenditure on the operations
of the previons year.

Nr. Manm: Then you are on wrong pre-
mises lo start with.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
Because of the quantity of frozen heef?

Mr. Mann:  Exactly.

The MINTSTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
That condition will always arise in this
country.

Ay, Mann: It was due to last year being
a drought year.

Mr. SPEAKER: Order!

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
There is no doubt that owing to drought
conditions in the South-West of Western
Australia, in the wheat belt, where the
greatest number of sheep are grown, there
will be a shortage of sheep early next year.
We know perfectly well that in the whole
of the wheat belf and the Great Southern
district, where the largest namber of sheep
are produced, there is a great shortage of
feed. As a result we shall not next year
have the stock for market that we had last
vear. The Governmeni have to caleulate on
the possibilities, and upon the circumstance
that drought conditions may obfain at any
time. The department have fo fix their
charges on conditions that have been proved
to operate here over a period of years. The
number of cattle slaughtered for the
vear ended on 30th June, 1925, was
94,274, the number of sheep and lambs
204,266, and the number of pigs 9,221
Basing their caleulations on the same num-
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ber of caltle, sheep and lunbs, and pigs,
the department estimated a revenue of
£35,i73. Against this must be set off de-
preciation on the capital invested; and the
capital invested, I may inform the member
for Perth, is not £42,000. Ilnterest charges
cannot be caleulated on £42,000, but must
be caleulated on £724973, which figure ve-
presents the capital cost of the whole of the
abatfoirs.

Mr. Thomson: Was that the original cost?

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
I am not ineluding North Fremantle. The
total eapital cost was £03,910. The deprecia-
tion to be allowed on that amount is £3,838;
the interest is £4,744; the health fees amount
to £2,180, and the running expenses to £20,-
C00. Those charges make a total of £32,912
aguinst an estimated revenue of £35,000
based on last year’s operations the only
calenlations on whieh we could work at the
tune when we fixed the abattoirs fees.

Mr. Mann: On the eapital cost, the abat-
toirs paid their way with the previous
ciiarges.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
Last year they lost £5,000, and that loss can-
not be allowed to recur.

Mr. Mann: It oceurred in one year only.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
The hon. member gave the House certain
figures, caleulating on which he endeavoured
o prove that by making certain charges on a
certain number of cattle, sheep, and pigs
slavghtered the Government could get a re-
venue sufficient to cover costs and liabilities;
but his figures in fhat connection are nof
reliable, and I will show him just how he
has erred in taking for the basis of his eal-
culation fizures which cannot in any sense be
justified. Here are the hon., member’s own
words——

‘We lave investigated the eosts and have en-
deavoured to allow for every item of incrensed
cxpenditure.  The Lutehers snggest what they
congidler would he a reasonabie scale.  The
approzimate Killing for a year at Midland
Junetion wonld he 12,844 buollocks, 169,000
sheey, ana 4,524 pigs.

And lhe makes the same calculation for the
Fremantle abattoirs. Caleulating on that
number to he slanghtered be arrives at a
tigure whiech would enable the department
to cover the whole of its liabilities. I want
to show the hon. member that In any cir-
cnmstances his figures cannot be correct. He
states that the butchers caleulate they will
slaughter this year 25,688 cattle. Last year
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the number slaughtered was 23,274, Last
year there were slaughtered 204,000 sheep.

Hon. Sir James Mitchell: Is that for the
year ended June, 19257

The MINISTER FQOR AGRICULTURE:
Yes. The member, for Perth states that this
year we are going to slanghter 338,000 sheep
—169,000 at Midlard Junction, and the same
number at Fremantle.

My, Mapn: Can you give the figures for
the year before last?

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
The member for Perth calculates that the
slaughtering of sheep will be increased by
G0 per cent. in one year. I am taking the
bon. member's own figures, which are the
bntchers’ figures. He estimates that we are
yoing to increase our consumption of mution
by 60 per cent in one year. He calenlates
that this year we are going to slaughter 338,-
000 sheep, as against 204,000 last year, or
an increase of 133,754 over last year.

Mr. Mann: So you will. Last year was a
drought year,

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
The estimate is positively absurd. It cannot
possibly be realised. That sort of ealeulation
is grotesque, and it is where the hon. meraber
finds bhimself wrong. Members must under-
stand that figures based on caleulations of
that character are of no value and cannot
help anyone in the consideration of the mat-
fer. Take the hon. member’s figures a little
further. It we killed in the metropolitan ab-
attoirs 2,414 catile more than we killed last
year, and 133,000 more sheep than were killed
in the previous year, we should have an
additional revenue of £13.821. Here we
have nearly £14,000 of the alleged £20,000
which the department is supposed fo make.
Inasmuch therefore as the figures are wrong,
we could not possibly slanghter 133,000
more sheep than were slanghiered last year.
It is a ridieulous assertion for the hon.
member e make, We cannot possibly de-
rive a revenue from stock that will not be
slaughtered or required for slaughier. The
hon. member having quoted his fizures, in-
sists that the department is profiteering by
making tremendous revenue.

Mr. Mann: You persist in qooting from
a drought year,

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
I think the House is satisfied that the fizures
quoted by the hon. member are absolutely
ridiculons. We killed 204,000 sheep last
vear, and the hon. member says that we
will slaughter 133,000 more this year. No
man in his senses will accept the hon.
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member's figures. The new charges did
not operate until the 7th September, and for
ebout three weeks the abattoirs, with all
the costs against them, were operating on the
old charges, aod of course at a loss.
We are not in the position to say how far
we can make calenlations for the whole
year on the operations of one month. The
butchers state that they were compelled to
cperate on the higher seale of fees, but I
pointed out that there was an alternative
charge if the butchers cared to avail them-
gelves of it.

Mr. Mann: That is the nigger in the
woodpile,

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
The butchers are wilfully operatine on the
higher scale and are using that scale as a
lever to bring about the reduction of charges.

Mr. Mann: In order to keep possession of
their property,

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
If the butchers were fo avail themselves of
seale A, whieh provides for a slaughtering
charge of 7s. as against 12s, under seale
B, and in the case of sheep and lambs the
slaughtering charge of 1s. as agpainst 2a
under seale B, it would be distinetly to
their advantage. But they will not do it
because they want to use the higher
charges as a lever hy whicl they ¢an hring
about a reduction of the charges all yround,
and when they do so, it is quite possible
that a number of them will come in under

the alternative charge which is called
Schedule A.
Mr, Mann ; Explain what Sehedule .\ °

means.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
Under Schednle A, the by-produet is ve-
tained by the department. Under Scheduic
B, by which the butchers pay a higher rate,
the by-produet is retained by the butchers.
To-day the butchers are endeavouring to
show that whereas the lower charze is Ja.
less than the higher charge, the inedihle
offal is worth 3s. or more to them. At this
time of the year, of course, all stock is n
the Dbest condition. Later on, the stuck
fall off, but just now the inedible offal
would he greater in quantity and better in
quality than at other periods of the year.
Just now they may sayv that the inedible
offal is worth 0 much to them. That, how-
ever, is not a fair ealeulation, because over
the whole of the vear, taking the good with
the bad, it is not worth anything like the
value placed on it.
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Mr. Mann interjected.

Mr. SPEAKER: The hon. member has
interjected frequently; he will have an
onportunity to reply to the AMinister’s
statements. 1 ask him, theretore, to cease
his constant interruptions. I hope I shall
not have to call the hon. member tv order
again,

The MINISTER FOR AGRICCLTURE:
1 will give the House the benefit of the
figures in support of the position. [ will
take the kill at Midland Junection for ous
wealk  The slaughter of cattle number 1
194, sheep and lambs 3422, and pigs G9.
The eost of killing under Scale A would be
£245, and under Seale I3 £463. 1t is esti-
wmated in the department, which has some
knowledge of the position, that the value
of the oifal is £156. Therefore, including
the offal, under Schedule A, which is the
lower price for killing, the total is brougbr
up to £402. Tle figures which [ have givan
under Seale B, £463, are evidence thaf the
butchevs to-day are losing £G0 a week be-
cause thev insist on slaughtering under the
higher schedule. 1f all stock were slaught-
ered under Schedule A, we would get these
figures: 23,274 cattle at 7s., £8,145; sheep
and lambs, 204,266 at Js. £10.213; pigs.
9,221 at 2s., £022, a total of £19,280. The
increase in eharges would thus only amount
to £9,640 under Schedule X, To this we
add the value of the inedible offal whicu
we lake. We estimate that it the butchers
would slaughter under Schedule A and
allow us to retain the offal, they would
save £4,290.

Hon, W. D. Johnson :
ridicule that.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
It the department revises these charges,
I am prepared to think that quite a num-
her will come under Schedule A, and in-
cluding TFremantle, where 30 per cent.
of the slaughtering is douve, there will be
a saving of an additional amount which
will bring the total saving fo £9,500, if the
butchers slaughter under Schedule A. The
butchers would be well advised to accept
Schedule A and kill under the alternative
conditions, leaving the viscera and inedible
offal to the department. The owner says,
“Why should we not retain the inedible
offal ¥** My reply is that we can treat the
inedihle offal more economically than can
the butchers. I admit thev are poolinx
their product, but they are pooling it only
for the time being. They have adopte’

OF course they
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that system while they are together. Ou
previous occasions they treated this offal
separately. They pul the incdible offal
aside. 1f a person is treating for half 2
dozen customers as against treating i
bulk, the work c¢annot be doue ecown-
omically.  The charge - must be wade
against the butchers, because they will not
permit  of cconomy and elficiency being
practised in lhe treatment. IFrom the
hygienic standpoint it is undesirable Lhat
butchers should be able to put aside the
inedible offal, and hold it for periods which
lead (o the ereation of insanitary econ-
ditivns. 1 do not say that happens nov.
Yor the purpose of Chis (ight they have
pooled. This, however, did not operate in
ihe past, and 1 do not expeet it Lo conlizue.
Instead of the system being carried out
efficiently, and in a hygienie manner by
the department we bave, at the abbatoirs,
butehers who want to put a bit of .offal
here aud another bit there. It is impossible
for the department to carry on the abat-
toirs as they are carried on in the Eastern
States, where these conditions are not pcr-
itted. By refusing to slanghter under rhe
reduced rvates, the butehers constitu.: aa
obstacle to the department with regard to
adminislering the abaitoirs nnder the Lest
possible conditions.

Mr. Thomson: How do our eharges emn-
pare with those in the Fastern States?

The MINISTER T'OR AURICULTURE:
Qur charges are higher than those in the
Eastern States, because we do much less
slavghtering here. The administration, in
the case of a large population, eosts very
mueh less than it does in the case of a
simall population such as we have: As our
population grows, oul eonswmption goes up
and as the amount of slaughtering increases,
oinr charges will be spread over preater
ground and will be proportionately re-
doced.  In the gircumstances, however, we
eannot expect a position sueh as that. The
depavtment would have bheen wise 1in
the beginning if they had insisted that
the hutehers should treat at the lower rate.
I sometimes regret that an alternative wus
offered, and that we did not insist that the
slanchtering must be earried on at the State-
owned abaiteirs under hygienic conditions.
The abattoirs, of course, belong to the people.

Mr. Mann: You could not have done that
witheut an Act of Parliament.

The MINISTER FOR AGRTCULTURE:
We might have attempled it. Had we in-
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sisted upon the butchers conducting their
business as is done in the Eastern States,
they wouid have been compelled to accept the
lower rate. The work at Midland Junetion
wonld then have been ecarried out under
more hygienic conditions, and in a more
economical and efficient manner.

Mr. Panton: There are no wholesale
butchers in South Australia as we know them
here,

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
The wholesale hutchers should be the last
to complain, and yet they are doing the most
syuealing. In South Australia the abattoirs
do everything and take everything. The
buteber there never sees his beast Letween
the time it is branded in the yard and when
it is landed in his shop. 'The butchers are
not allowed to argue, and to say what shall
operate and what shall not operate at the
abattoirs. They are not allowed to insist
upon this that or the other bheing done. The
authorities say, “These are the econditions
under which you must operate” In South
Australia the abattoirs are administered by
a trust. Here we have butchers dictating
the conditions under which the abattoir sys-
tem shall be run. Iven though it may re-
quire an Aet of Parliament, in the interests
of the people, of cleanliness, and of better
conditions, it may have to be attempted.
The hutchers undoubtedly receive advan-
tages from the new system, which they are
not prepared to admit in controversy. Al-
though they are prepared to admit fo e
personally in my office that the eonveniences
are all that could be desired, and that every-
thing is {o their advantage, they have never
made a public profession of that during this
controversy. I will tell the Honse some of
the advantages that the hutchers have re-
ceived. For the first time they have chilling
accommodation attached to the abattoirs at
Fremantle and Midland Junction. ’

Mr. Panton: Which was badly needed.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
This chiliing accommodation is provided free
for 24 hours, and also for all holidays and
week-ends. The boetchers pay nothing for
that convenienee, but they are not prepared
1o admit that thiz is valuable to them.

Hon. Sir James Mitchell: This is included
in the charges so that they do pay for it,

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
Yes, they have to pay bat they do not want
to pay. They now have adequate accommo-
dation for slaughtering which, they did not
possess before. Because they could not get
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slaughtering done within the required time,
and because they hiad no chilling accommnda-
tion in which to hold the meat, they had to
pay heavy overtime rates to butchers to do
the slaughtering. Now that they have been
given slaugltering conveniences, and space
and accommodation to enable them to hold
their meat, they need not pay overtime.

Hon, Sir James Mitehell: There are no
losses of meat.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
The hon. member has said it. There are no
Josses, Prior to the introduction of these
conveniences and, this accommodation the
bufchers took their meat hot and steaminyg
from the abattoirs, put it inte lorrics, and
brought it to Perth. There were no hygienie
conditions about that sort of thiny, Mr.
Walder has admitted to me that he lost
hundreds of pounds because of that condi-
tion. That statement is recorded on the
file as the oufcome of the deputation that
waited wpon me,

Hon. Sir James Milchell: Are you charg-
ing too muoeh for it?

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULITURE:
We may be deing so, but I am going to re-
vise these rates. If we are charging too
much, as T said long age, I will revise the
rates. I wanted a fair period, however, to
satisfy me that the department was not car-
rying on at a loss. I have no personal in-
terest in this matter. It would not worry
me, if I had no Ministerial responsibilities,
whether the abattoirs paid or not. It would
be a plensant thing for me to be able to say
to these genilemen, “Have what you like
at whatever cost you like” I could make a
good fellow of myself. I have, however, to
see that the finances, that are provided by the
people to enable the butchers to carry on
their bnsiness, are not being spent at a loss
to the people.

Hon. Sir James Mitchell: Or at a profit
either.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
If I find that our charges are excessive, I
propose to revise them. I assure the buteh-
ers that I am not going to fix a rate that
will enable them to carry on their business
profitably and which will provide them with
all the conveniences, if the public pays the
piper.

Hon. Sir James Mitchell: The ace is on
the down with the Minister.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
The Department of Agricnlture has lost
money as a eonsequence of providing chilling
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accommodation free to these butchers, A
number of the butchers rented rooms at the
State Markets, and also paid for chilling
accommodation at the Government refriger-
ating chambers in Perth, Several of these
gentlemen have long ago given up these
premises, and are no longer utilising the re-
frigerating space at the Government works.
In the summer time it cost the individual
butchers £8 a week by way of rent for these
premises. [ addition they had to suffer all
thie logses in bringing the meat from Midland
Junction io Perth., They had to employ ad-
ditional labour at these premises, and employ
addifional men for the extra work required
in handling the meat. They now adopt the
principle that they want everything for no-
thing. They say that the chilling aceommo-
dation is no good to them., When a thing
is actually provided it never is any good,
because onee people have a thing they
attach no value to if. Although they say
the chilling accommodation is no good to
them they are utilising it.

Mr. Mann: Ave vou referring to the chill-
ing accommodation in Wellington-street?

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURI:
Nn, We provided premises at Wellington-
streel and the butchers rented them, and alse
occupied refrigerating space at the Govern-
ment Refrigerating Works, This acconuno-
dation iz now provided for them at Midland
Junetion, and there is ro neced for them any
Tonger to rent the other premises.  They
now conduct their business at Midland June-
tion. They have this refrigerating space for
nothing. ‘

Hon. Sir James Mitchell: The wholesale
men will have to take the refrigerated space
in Perth.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
Some of them muslt do so. Many of those
gentlemen who made the most noise have
taken advantage of the new conditions. My
regret is that they have not expressed ap-
preciation through the Press of what has
beon done for them. I do mot want them to
thank me, but an appreciation in the Press
wonld have been hetter understood.

Hon, Sir James Mitchell: If you charge
them too much there is nothing for them to
be thankful for.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
They might admit that they have been given
all these things, that the eonditions are
much improved, though contesting that our
charge is teo high. They now suggest that
we should reduce the rates by nearly 30 per

[ASSKMBLY.)

cent.  That eannot be done. We cannot
provide conveniences of this sort for
nothing,

The Minister for Lands: They want the
conveniences but do not want to pay for
them.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
In the future, when the Government are
thinking of work of this nature, before any-
thing is done they will have to get an agree-
ment with the people concerned that they
will pay the cost of the undertaking. Qther-
wise they will bring pressure to bear upon
Parliament to defeat the Government in
their object of sccuring repayment for ser-
vices rendered.

Hon. G. Taylor: It makes it almost im-
possible for the Giovernment to act as
traders.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURKE:
Yes. 1 am informed that a number of these
wholesale butchers are now making use of
the abattoirs as o distributing centre. They
were previously compelled fo rent premises
in Perth as distributing places for the other
butchers, Now they are using the abattoirg
for this purpose, and are said to be con-
ducting all thetr business there. If this is
sa it cannot be allowed to continue, for 1t
means greater loss to the department. If
the abattoirs are to be nsed as a distributing

centre for other butchers it must lead to

congestion there, for there will be beef and
mutton on the premises until it Is sold that
should long ago have been sent away. As
a result of that econgestion we shall have to
employ extra hands, and shall pay overtime.
Whilst we are prepared to provide these
facilities, we eannot allow the hutchers to
make the abattoirs a business centre where
all the wholesale butchers will ecarry on
their operations.

Sitting suspended from 6.1F to 7.30 p.m.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
During the eourse of his speech the member
for Perth {Mr. Mann) made some reference
to the amount paid weekly to the Govern-
ment by Mr. Copley, of the Anchoragoe
abattoirs. He alleged that the Government
made £50 a week out of Mr, Copley. That
was largely due to the fact that a big per-
centage of the stock was slaughtered at the
Anchorage abattoirs. As a matter of faet,
the husiness eonducted by Mr. Copley is 2
large one, and he should not complain of
the faet that he paid £30 a week to the
Covernment. It was greatly to his per-
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sonnl advantage because he was able to
carry on his business in his own abatiairs.
If he had rented the premises from the Gov-
ernment, he would still have been placed m
a more advantageous position than any
other butcher. He was ahle to retain all
the blood and manure from his own slaugh-
terings, as a result of the State operating
in his abattoirs. In all other abattoirs the
blood and manure become the property of
the State.

Mr. Mann: He paid you for the bleod.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
Mr. Copley bad an advantage because he
was able to operate in his own premises,
make nse of his own by-produets plant, and
thus had opportunities over and above all
other bulvhers. Mr, Copley was well aware
of that faet and T have no doubt, if we had
not closed down the Anchorage abattoirs,
he would still have gone on cheerfully under
the conditions that previously obtained.
There is no doubt about that. Other
hutchers are satisfied that Mr. Copley had
a great advantage under those conditions,
and I believe that in due course they will
admit that the existing conditions, under
which all are placed on the same basis,
provide a fairer deal to the trade. I have
ho doubt that Mr. Copley has complained,
seeing fthat, wnder the existing econditions,
be is placed on the same business footing as
other butchers. If therc is disadvantage to
anyone, it is to Mr. Copley, because he has
not now advantages over and above his com-
petitors in the trade. I do not think I need
say any more about the position, I wish,
however, to stress one phase. The mem-
ber for Perth endeavoured to make a point
out of the fact that last vear a quaatity of
frozen beef was unloaded on the market he-
cause stoek was not available. He stated
that the losses at the abattoirs were due to
the faet that frozen heef was unloaded
on the market. The House will be well ad-
vised to remember that the butchers made
no loss because the frozen beef was placed
on the market. They handled it at a profit
and saw to it that they got their profits.
The only loss that was made iu connection
with the whole transaction was made by the
Government at the abattoirs. It must be
remembered that seasons will always oceur
when the conditions then present will obtain.
We will always have our drought periods.
Every hon. member representing a sheep-
growing distriet knows very well that there
will be a mutton shortage carly next vear, he-
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cauge (he feed is not available. At the present
time stock owners are rushing sheep to the
market for sale, and as a result we have had
an abnormal peak period this month. The
marketings during the present month are
ont of all proportion o marketings during
any previous October, which, as I have in-
dicated, is always the peak month of the
year for sheep. Owing to the large per-
centage of sheep in the market this month,
I say that this October is not to be re-
garded as a fair basis on which to calenlate
fees for a period, neither is it fair to fix
those fees on that basis, I have already told
the member for Perth, the member for
Guildford (Hon. W. D. Jahnson), and the
butchers, when I met them at a confercnce,
that T wonld go into the position. T have
asked the acconntant at the Agricultural
Depariment to take the matfer up and get
oul the figures for me. If I find that the
fees charged are too high, I will revise them.
At the same time, I must conserve the in-
terests of the State as well as of the
butehers. The consumer must obtain his
meat under the best possible conditions.
The butchers will be well advised to kill at
the lower rate and if they do so, they will
have no cause for compiaint. In other
countries they are compelled to do so; here
they werc given an alternative. I regret
that they adopted the higher rates as a
means of effecting an all-round reduction.
I hope the mewber for Perth will withdraw
the motton. At the first opportunity, as
soon a5 | can get the figures before me, | will
20 into the eharges and if 1 find that the rates
lovied by the Government are not fair, I will
be pirepared to reduce them. 1 make no
promise that I will make any refunds, be-
cause those payments would be to the
butehers and not to the consumers.

Hon. Sir James Mitchell: Of gourse, you
nwust have a fair charge.

The MTNISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
Yes, I will zet a fair charge, but there wili
be no refund unless it is given to the con-
sumer.

Mr. Mann: The increase has not been
passed on to the consumer.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICCLTURE:
It is ridiculous to say that it has not heen
passed on. I wonld point out, moreover,
that stock has never been cheaper than dur-
ing the past month or so. The butchers ad-
mitted that they had not passed it on be-
cause the price of stock had gone down.
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If they have not had stock cheaper, the butch-
crs are not eniitled to pass on a charge that
does not exist. In their statement in the
Press the butchers admitted that the stock
market had declined, and that they had pur-
chased supplies at a lower cost.

Hon. Sir James Mitchell: They must pass
it on.

The MINISTER FOR AGRICULTURE:
Of counrse they pass it on to the consumer.
I hope the member for Perth will withdraw
the motion,

On motion by Hon. Sir James Mitcheil,
debate adjourned.

BILL—MUNICIPAL CORPORATIONS
ACT AMENDMENT.

In Commitiee.

Resuned from 14th Oetober. Mr. Lutey
in the Chair; Mr, Latham in charge of the
Bill

The CHAIRMAN: Progress was reporied
on Ciavse 1.

"lause put and passed.

Clause 2—Power temporarily te close

roads not in use:

The MINISTER FOR LANDS: I move
an amendmeng—

That in line 2 of Subelause (2), ‘‘road’’

be gtruck out, and the words *‘street or way?’?
inserted in licu.
In Subclanse 1 “street or way™ is used, and
the amendiment will bring Subelause 2 into
conformity with .

Amendment put and passed.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS: I move

an amendment— .

That a new subelanse, to stand as Subclause
(3), be inserted as follows:—*'The Council
shall serve a copy of such notice on the owners
and ocenpiers of all land abutting on the street
or way wilh 2 notification endorsed thereon
that if the application is objected to, notice of
such objection must be given to the Minister
within one month from a date to be stated
in sueh endorsement.”’’

The nbjeet of the amendment is to enable
the owner of any block of land abutting on
a strect or way to have notification regard-
ing the application for the closing of any
such street or way.

Amendment put and passed.

[ASSEMBLY.]

Mr. LATHAM: [ move an amendment—

That after “‘council,” in line 3 of Sub-
clause (3), the following be inscrted:— ‘and
may be leased.’’ :

Amendment put and passed; the clause as
amended agreed to.

Title—agreed to.
Bill reported with amendments.

BILL—AUCTIONEERS ACT AMEND-
MENT.

Second Reading Defeated.
Debate resumed from 14th October.

THE MINISTER FOR LANDS (Hoo.
W. . Angwin—North-East Fremantle)
[7.47]: This is a very dangerous Bill. It
will alter the whole system of trading
throughout the State. It merely provides
that second-hand motor cars may be aue-
tioned by might, but that is done to reintro-
duce the system of night trading, which is
prohibited under the IFactories and Shops
Aect. It will place the sellers of secund-hand
motor ears in a privileged position. I do
not think it good that second-hand wmeotor
ears should be sold by night.

Hon. Sir James Mitchell: Can they be
sold by night now?

The MINISTER FOR LANDS: Not atb
anetion. Primarily no night auction selliug
is allowed of any deseription of goods, but
there is a provision in the Aet allowing wool
to be so sold if it hus been eatalogued so as
to admit of previous inspection. Under the
same provision Jand may be auctioned by
night. That, too, is open to previous in-
spection. I do not see why the proposed
privilege should be given to the sellers of
second-band motor cars. It is introducing
a system that has not been permitted in
the past, 1 hope hon. members will not
agree to the Bill.

MR. ANGELO (Cascoyne) [7.50]): I am
surprised that the member for Coolgardie
{Mr. Lambert) should have introduced the
Bill. It shows great want of consistency in
him, for only last week we found his assist-
ing the Minister for Works in preventing
bakers from working by night; now we have
him in all seriousness suggesting we should
make auctioneers work by night. Night bak-
ing has been condemned on the score that it
is bad for the men’s health, Surely if it be
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unhealthy for bakers to work by night, it is
equally unhealthy for auctioneers to work by
night; in fact, worse, for whereas the baker
works in a comfortable kitchen away from
the cold night air, the anctioneer will be
called upon to sell either in the open or in a
big draughty garage where the germs that
thrive by mght will be considerably multi-
plicd. Why should it be necessary to single
out one artiele for this privilege?

Mr, Lambert: Why wool?

Mr. ANGELO: That is entirely different.
The wool is always inspeeted before sale.
It is appraised and its volue cannot well be
altered. 1 am afraid the Bill has been in-
troduced in the interests of certain garage
owners who desire to get an advantage over
their competitors. ¥ eans that a lot of
unwary people from the country will be
taken down. Moreover, wool is & necessity
and so, too, is land, whereas wmotor cars to a
greaf extent are mere luzuries. Surely if a
man wishes to purchase a maotor car he can
do so in daylight.

MR. LAMBERT (Coolgardie—in zeply)
[7.52]: I am surprised at the show of op-
position to the Bill. Tt has passed in an-
other place, where it met with almost un-
animous approval.

Alr. Richardson: Is that a goed recom-
mendation?

dMr. LAMBERT: At all events it repre-
sents the mature deliberation of those so
very dear to the member for Subiaco. As
for the superficial argument put forward
by the memher for Gascoyne (Mr. Angelo),
that the propoesal in the Bill can be likened
to day baking, there is no such analogy.
The product of baking is foodstuffs, and for
reasons of health foodstuifs should not be
handled by night. Underlying the hon.
members’ true opposition to the Bill is the
facl that ninc-tenths of our secondhand
motor cars, representing a big waste pro-
duct, are sold to dealers, usually firstelass
mechanics. These working men can afford
to pay £10 or £50 for a ear and in their
spare Hime recondition it. This they do in-
stead of attending racing and trotting meet-
ings zo dear to the member for (Gascoyne.
Rather than encourage men to stand on
street corners during Saturday afternocon
and in other ways waste their time on Sun-
days. the hon. member should be ready to
give them the opportunity to purchase
secondhand molor ears and recondition
them in their own time.
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Hon. G. Taylor: That looks like over-
fime.

Mr. LAMBERT: It is not necessarily
overtime. If the opposition came from the
muneyed interests in another place, if it
came 1rom fthose who desire to sell new
moter cars to the unfortunate farmers and
working men wlo cannot afford to pay for
them, I could understand it. As for the
contention of the Minister for Lands that
this is likely to prove merely the introdne-
tion of nighi trading, I say that is alto-
gethes wrong. There is no such suggestion.
1f biz firms such as Messrs Dalgety & Co.
and Messrs. Elder, Smith & Co, are allowed
to eatalogue waol and offer it for sale by
night, it is eyually right that we should ex-
tend the same privilege to those who want
to buy and seil second-hand motor cars by
night. Why should we debar a first-class
mechanic who wants to buy a second-hand
motor car from atfending an auction sale
at night, and there purchasing the car®

Hon. G. Taylor: You know why the lim-
itations are there.

My, LAMBERT: I do not know that it
can be seriously contended that the limita-
tions should operate against the interests of
the eommunily. There are people who
would surround our general condoct of life
with all possible restrictions.- The further
we ean rewnove such restrictions, the better.

Mr. Thomson: Come over here.

Mr. LAMBERT: Views must be ex-
panded. What was right 100 years ago is
not necessarily right to-day.

Mr. Sampson: The Aet was passed in
1873, and Dhas not since been amended,

Mr. LAMBERT: That is so. The Minis-
ter for Lands should subserihe to more ad-
vaneed views. The idea of his not heing
prepared to move one step since 1873 sug-
gests that if we wait for him we shall not
get very far in furthering the demneracy of
this country. I do not know that the Minis-
ter for Lands was over-seripus in his op-
position to the Bill. :

Hon. G. Taylor: Cannot you bring in the
widows and orphans also? e might sym-
pathise with you then.

Mr. LAMBERT: Xo one is so good on
the low pedal as is the member for Mt.
Margaret. This Bill has bheen fairly pre-
sented to the House. T have given all the
conceivable reasons against the passage of
the Bill.

The Minister for Lands: I agree with
vou there.
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Mr. LAMBERT: And I have given the
reasons in tavour of the Bill. I have an-
swered the contention of the Minister for
Lands that there is objection to the meas-
ure from the point of view of the worker.
Is it contended that the worker shall be
present to hold up the anctioneer’s eat-
alogue? My object is to provide oppor-
tunities for the young working mechanics
of the city. ¥en who have £20, £30, or £40
by them might inspect a car in the day time
and they would know what they were going
to buy. We should encourage such men to
carry on legitimate work on their own
account, and to become more self-reliant.
T commend the second reading to the good
Judgment of the House.

(Question put and a division taken with
the following result:—

Ayes 11
Noes 16
Majority against 5
AYERS,
Mr. Brown Mr. Sampson
Mr. Grifithe Mr. J. H. Smith
Mr. Lambert Mr. Teesdale
Mr. Mann Mr. Thomson
Mr. Marshall Mr, Wilson
Mr, Millington (Teller.}
NOES.

Mr. Angelo Sir James Mitehell
Mr. Apgwin Mr. Panton
Mr. Chesson Mr. Sleeman
Mr, Coverley Mr. Taylor
Mr. Heron Mr. A. Wansbrough
Miss Helman Mr. C. P. Wansbrough
Mr. Kennedy Mr. Munsle
Mr. Lutey (Teller.)

Mr. McCalinm

Question thus negatived; Bill defeated.

BILL—MUNICIPALITY OF FRE-
MANTLE,

Second Reading.

MR. SLEEMAN (Fremantle) [8.7] in
moving the second reading said: This is
one of those little measures containing no-
thing contentions.

Mr. Thomson: Not like vour vacing Re-
striction Bill.

Mr. SLEEMAN: No. The object of the
Bill is to give the Fremantle Municipal
Council power to resume land required for
the extension of Queen-street from Adelaide-
street throngh to Cantonment-street. Any-

[ASSEMBLY.)

one who knows Fremantle will agree that
the width of the streets and the nature of
the turnings canse iraffic to become very
congested at times, and it is necessary that
Queen-street should be carried through in
order to relieve the congestion. Later on
it is proposed to take steps to widen cer-
tain portions of streets in the municipality.
That is a very necessary work.

Hon, Sir James Mitehell: I suppose you
imagine you are in London.

Mr., SLEEMAN: I am pleased that it is
intended to do something in the way of
town planning at Fremantle. 1 understand
that originally the town was laid out very
nicely, but people who came afierwards
narrowed the streets and did not carry them
through.

Mr. Sampson: Tt is certainly prefty well
laid out.

Mr. SLEEMAN: The extension of
Queen-street to (antonment-street will re-
lieve much congestion, partieularly in the
evening time.

Hon., G. Taylor: Has another place con-
sidered this Bill?

Mr. SLEEMAN: Yes, it has come from
the Council. I move—

That the Bill be now read a second time.

Question put and passed.

Bill read a seeond time.

In Committes.

Mr. Lutey in the Chair; Mr. Sleeman in
:eharge of the Bill.

Claunses 1 to 3—agreed to.

Clause 4—Power to widen streeis.

Hon. G. TAYLOR: I understand that
fhis Bill is on all-fours with the City of
IPerth Bill recently passed.

Mr, Sleeman: Yes, word for word.

Hon. G. Tayler: Except, of course, that
it is made to apply to Fremantle.

Clause put and passed.

Clanses 3 to 0, Title—agreed to.

Bill reported without amendment and the
report adopted.

BILL—LAND ACT AMENDMENT.
© Second Reuding.
Debate resumed from the 15th October.

HON. SIR JAMES MITCHELL (Nor-
tham) ([8.13]: This Bill is intended to
amend Section 105 of the Land Aect which
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provides that in certain ecircumstances the
boundary of a pastoral lease may be ad-
justed by the approval of the Minister and
on pavment of a fee. Reading Section 109,
one would imagine that the application
must be made for land not already leased,
but in the hands of the Crown; in other
words, that the adjustment must be made
hefore the Minister approves of an appli-
cation for a pastoral leage. Bui that is not
very clear. The Minister wishes the House
fo say that he may approve of an applica-
tion to alter the boundaries of a pastoral
lease even if by doing so he must disturb
the boundaries of an adjacent lease, where
improvements have been made on another
man’s land in error—or deliberately, by
the way—so as to secure to the¢ man who
actually made them, the improvements, or
failing that payment by the innocent per-
son. The proposal scems lighly dangerous.
These pastoral leases are not surveyed, and
it i1s the respousibility of the pastoral lessee
to have the survey done. The survey is an
expensive business, and therefore the lessee
has taken the risk of not baving it done.
That position has existed for years. A
prominent landmark, sav a hill or a lake,
has Deen incorrectly plotted on the map.
An applicant for land knows just where he
wants to start, taking the prominent land-
mark as a starting point. He sends the
Lands Department a deseription of the
land, naming the starting point. The
Lands Department take the map as it is.
The starting point may be Mt. Jackson, and
the department take that point on the map,
where it may be 20 or 30 miles ont. So
confusion has arisen land trouble exists.
Some of the maps are 25 or 30 years old.
The Bill asks the House to agree to some-
thing we have never agreed to before.

Hon. S. W. Munsie: Do you not think
it only fair that improvementz should be
paid for?

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: If they
are of value to the man on whese land they
are and can be used by him, but not other-
wise. The man, already baving a well of
his own. mwav not want a well put down
by another person. If so, why should ke
pay for another well, or failing that sur-
sender some of his land? The man who
makes the improvements takes no risk what-
ever; nothing can happen to him,

Hon, S. W. Munsie: The man who makes
improvements is the man we want to en:
courage.
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Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Improve-
inents on his own land, yes.

Hon. 8. W, Munsie: He makes them under
the beliet that he is on his own land.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: This
ineasure, if enacted, might encourage a man
to do improvements on another man’s land, if
he wants some of that other man’s land, Take
the case of a recent selector, say a soldier set-
tler. If someone made improvements on the
soldier settlet’s land and the latter were told
he must either pay for the improvements or
et o part of his holding, he would have
only the latter alternative. Of course the Min-
ister wonld refuse lhis approval if he were
nol convineed that it was a case of honest
misiake; and no doubt he would 2lso refuse
uis aesent if the exereise of the power weant
the rvuin of the station of an innceent man,
I'here is no reason why before making im-
provements n pastoral lessee should not have
tis land surveved,

The Minister for Lands: That does not

¢ost mueh.

Han. Sir JAMES MITCHELL:
it costs a good deal.

Mr, Tepsdale: Tt is advantageous to leave
the survey for some time, until the pas-
{oralist has s chanee to get on his feet.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Some of
these leaseholds have existed for 25 years.
Refore it ean he proved that the improve-
ments are on the wrong lease, a survey must
he made. T know of a recent case where a
fonee was erected by a pastoral lessee just a
few chains inside his boundary. When the
adjoining man decided to put up a fence, he
vianted to bhuy a half of the other man’s
fence, and of course the narrow strip of land,
Fut the man who had the fence said, “No:
put up a fence on your own country.” The
man had te do it, and to-day there are two
fences a chain apart.

Mr. Munsie: They would make a good
street or roadwav.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELYL: I do not
think any of us can approve of the clavse
worded as it is. The original section in the
rarent Act wns never intended to do more
than authorise the Minisler to adjusé houn-
daries where he could reasonahly do it. A
very hard case came hefore me some time
ago: T think it has since been adjusted. It
ncenrred at Onslow. There was a starting
point on the coast, and the contention was
that in the ecourse of vears the point had
moved further down the coast or up the

I know
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eoast, as the case may be, and that bLoun-
daries were in conseqnence altered.

Mr. A. Wansbrough: Something like a
willy-willy,

Hon. 8ir JAMES MITCHELL: The re-
sult was to put some valuable improvements
on another man’s land,

The Minister for Lands: No; you are
wrong. The other man took up the land with
the improvements on it.

Hon, Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Thatisa
cifferent ease.

Mr. Marshall:
in that regard.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Does the
Minister mean that the original lessee made
the improvements on Crown lands?

The Minister for Lands: Before the other
inan had the land.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: From the
Crown? If it was Crown land, the Minister
could of conrse adjust the matter. I can-
ot agree that we ought to give protection to
a person who makes improvements on an-
other man’s land.

The Minister for Lands: That has been
done in the past. There bas been bluffing.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: I am in-
capable of it.

The Minister for Lands: Oh, are you ?

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Probably
the Minister for Lands has dene some blnfi-
ing. I cannot agree with the Minister that
the Bill shonld be passed. To rectify errors
may be right, but it is wrong 1o make it
puossible for wrong to be deliberately done in
order that the wrongdoer may gain some ad-
vantage. If this Bill becomes law it will be
a sort of invitation fo a man to go on his
neighbour’s Iand in order that he may secure

it

I can quote a recent case

MR, TEESDALE (Roebourne) [8.25]: I
sapport the Bill, which I regard as highly
necessary. I can utterly disprove the Op-
position Leader’s contention that the measure
is unfair. A certain headland on the coast
in the North was accepted as a datum point
for the taking up of pastoral country. That
datum point was positively shown on the
coastal survey. It isa prominent headland on
the coast, and people frequently speak of
something being 10 miles east or 10 miles
west of that headland. Certain work was
done within ahout half a mile of the head-
land by a pastoralist. A droughi beine on,
il was nceessary to sink wells near the head-
land, as there was good feed in the neigh-
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bourhood. YWhen a new coastal survey was
made by the survey hoat some two or three
years ago, this particular headland was
thrown some miles down the eoast—which, of
course, immediately aroused the attention
ol the man holding that country, and also
the attention of his neighbour, who then
claimed that his block extended a little be-
low the headland. The consequence was a
dispute which lasted some time. The de-
partmental file on the subjeet is 4 or 5 inches
high, and oll sorts of threats were made by
the pastoralists.  Two Ministers, T think,
dealt with the case; and only lately has the
aggrieved man received justice. It was indeed
a hard case, and I did my best for him, and
found it an uphill fight. Eventually the de-
partment recognised that an injustice had
lieen done, and they made reasonable repara-
tion. Naturally, the man was not satisfied.
However, few people in his posilion ever are.
The man holding the property now is in dis-
{ressed cireumstances by reason of the delays
that have occurred. There was a good patch
of feed available when he had sheep to put
on this eonntry. Had the sheep been put
there they wonld have been saved. The Gov-
crnment might reimburse him the value of
the sheep he lost, 35s. to 405, per head. There
was 1, clear case of injustice due to the neglect
of the Government. We want a measure like
this to enahle justice to be done in such cir-
cumstances, and therefore I have pleasure
in supporting the Bill.

MR. ANGELO (Gascoyne) [3.29]: Since
the Bill was introduced by the Minister for
Lands, 1 have considered it carefully and
also discussed its provisions with quite a
number of pastoralists. The result is that
T intend to support the second reading. I
consider that the Minister is to be thanked
for his desire to Improve the provisions of
the parent Act.

HON. G. TAYLOR (Mt Margaret)
[8.30]: When a man seleets pastoral eoun-
try, he plots his homestead, and puts down a
dam, well, or fank, on what he believes is
his own land, on the land which the
Government have approved of his tak-
ing_ over. It is only when the sur-
veyor comes along that the man finds
he is a few chains in on Crown land, or land
applied for sinee hy someone else. 1 lknow
of a distressing case of fhat kind which

-occurred some time ago, and the error was

not fonnd out antil the survey was actually
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made. It was then discovered that the im-
provements had been carried out some three
chains from the boundary on Crown land.
Fortunately no one else had faken up the
land, and the owner of the property was
able to take up anofher block, which em-
hraced the improvements that he had made.
In that way he saved some £500 or £600
worth of improvements, The Bill will give
anyone falling into a similar error the op-
portunity to secure compensation for the
capital invested. In another instance I know
of a holder who, in order {o save his property,
was compelled to take up another bloek of
land ihat he was hardly capable of handling
at the time. I am eonvinced that the Bill
will not work a hardship upon any person;
therefore 1 shall support the second recad-
ng.

THE MINISTER FOR LANDS (Hon.
W. C. Angwin-—North-East Fremantle--
in reply) [8.327: I am surprised at the re-
marks made against the Bill by the Leader
of the Opposition. I did not think that any
possible objection could be raised to it. The
hon. member stated that the Bill would prove

dangerous. I really cannot understand such-

a remark. In the past pastoral leases have
been taken up from some given point from
which to work. Then everything went on all
right until someone else came along to iake
up land adjoining. A survey perhaps re-
vealed tliat the holder had earried out his
improvements on what he thought was his
own land, when, as a faet, the improvements
had been made outside what proved to be his
boundary. Of coursg there were no survevs
to work upon; it would rost the State too
much to carry out surveys so far ioland.
Only to-day a case was brought under my
notice which will be affected by the Bill.
Some retnrned soldiers desired to sell their
area, and it was discovered that {heir fence
was a small distance from the boundary.
Then the person who wished to buy deelined
to do so. I vave an assurance that there
would e no difficalty because the adjoining
land was Crown property. If the adjoining
land had been privately held I could not
have made the promise. If a person wil-
fully erects a fence, or sinks a well, or effeets
other improvements, oufside his boun-
dary, the position wiil be different, but that
is hardly likely to oceur.

Hon. Sir James Mitchell: T do not object
when a man has made his improvements out-
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side his boundary and the improvements are
on Crown lands.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS: In the
case quoted by the Leader of the Opposi-
tion, after the improvements had been made,
certain alterations were made to the boun-
daries, and the person who took up the land
found that his neighbour’s improvements
were on the land that he bad taken up.

Hon. Sir James Mitchell: 1 suppose the
improvements were made when the land was
Crown Jand; yon should adjust that.

The MINISTER ¥OR LANDS: But it
was nat Crown land when it was discovered
that the improvements bad been made.

Hon. Sir James Mitchell: In that case
it ig all right.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS: There
is still apother instance which, to some ex-
tent, was responsible for the introduction
of 1his Bill. An old family had a pastoral
lease. They sank wells and constructed
dams and eventually found that those im-
provements were made outside their boun-
dary. Someone else took up that adjoining
area and, of course, elaimed the improve-
ments. We had no power to vectify that
position,

Hon.
land?

The MINISTER FOR LANDS: Ii was
Crown land when the bores and wells were
put down,

Hon. Sir James Mitehell:
object to an adjustment there.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS: The Bill
will apply to areas taken up many years
ago, and where other people have since
come along and taken up adjoining pro-
perties, We propose by the Bill that the
new selector may have the improvements,
provided he pays the value to the person
who made them, and if he does not agree
to do that, the boundary will be altered so
as to preserve the improvements for the
man who made them.

Sir James Mitehell: On Crown

I would not

Mr. Teesdale: How will you arrive at
their value?

The MINISTER FOR LANDS: In the
same way as in regard to the resnmption
of land for agrieultural purposes. A
referee will be appointed,

Question put and passed.

Bill read a second Hme.
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In Commattee.

Mr. Lutey in the Chair; the Minister
for Lands in charge of the Bill,

Clause l1—agreed to.
Clause 2—Amendment of Seétion 105:

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: I agree
that where improvements are made on land
whilst it is Crown land, the boundaries
zhould be adjusted. Where a pastoralist
makes improvements deliberately on an-
other man’s land, perhaps with the idea of
securing a good well site, he should not be
protected.

Mr. Marshall: This clause will not apply
to cases of that description.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: With all
due deference to the hon. member, and with
all due respeet for his judgment, I say it
will apply to the man who deliberately
nakes improvements on  his neighbonr’s
property.

Mr. Marshall: He would be trespassing.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS: Every
care will be taken in the direction to which
the Leader of the Opposition refers. What
he suggests may happen, but it is not at all
likely to happen. I do not think anyone
would run the risk of spending £1,000 in
putting down a bore if he knew it to be
outside his boundary, unless he had made
some arrangement with the other man first.
The alterations we have to deal with are in
regard to areas that were taken up many
vears azo and where the adjoining land has
heen taken up sinee.

Mr. ANGELO: There is a safeguard in
the last portion of the clause which says
“unless the holder of such other land is
willing to pay the applicant the fair value
of such improvements.” That means that
if the adjoining lessee puis down a bore on
the other man’s property, the proper owner
ot the lease simply pays a fair value for
the improvements. If the bore is a failure.
the owner pays nothing.

Mr. TEESDALE: When these boun-
daries arc adjusted, sarveys will have to be
made. The applicants or contestants will
have to pay the cost of the surveys. This
may mean a sum that is greater than the
value of the land,

The Minister for Lands: It is not likely
there will be any surveys for some time,

Clause put and passed.
Title—agreed to,

Bill reported without amendment, and
the report adopted.

[ASSEMBLY.]

BILL—VERMIN ACT AMENDMENT.
Message.

Message from the Governor received and
read, recommending the Bill.

Second Reading.
Debate resumed from the previous day.

HON. SIR JAMES MITCEELL (Nor-
tham) [8.60]: This is another of those
measures whieh mean a heavy tax upon
the people, particularly upon the land
owners. The Minister has said that dingoes,
foxes and rabbits are doing much damage,
particularly the first named. We agree
with that, but when it comes to a question
of dealing with the matter T am afraid
many of us will be objecting to the
proposal, The Minister is right in saying
thai much more stoek c¢an be carried on
the land if these pests ean be eradicated.
Land owners must destroy the dogs on their
holdings. In various parts of the State
there are boards Lhat control the work. The
same tronuble has been experienced in the
other States. 1 should have bLeen glad if
the Minister bad told us what had happened

* there, what steps had been taken to meet

the difficulty, and what sueccess had fol-
lowed. When dealing with a matter of such
vital importance we ought to be told what
has happened in other parts of Australia,
and what the cost has been to the man on
the land. The Minister has brought down
a Bill to set up another board. 1t would be
a good thing it this work were regarded as
a national undertaking. We have inspec-
tors employed, who conld just as well com-
pel landowners to play their part as a board
could do. Tt would be right for the Govern-
ment 1o deal with the matter because it is
a national one. Three-quarters of the land
in the South-West is Crown land, and one-
quarter of it is owned by the purchasers.
Dingoes and rabbits do uot cave where they
go. Their breeding grounds are nearly all
on Crown lands. It might be as well to
treat this as a national quesiion to the ex-
tent that the work of destruction should be
a matter for the Crown to regulate. This
Bill is & tax upen a tax. It is a super tax.
The present hoards ave to continue. They
are to exercise their powers and responsi-
hilities, and the present right to tax will
stand,  They will collect the tax, so that
there will be two taxes for this one purpose.
That is bad in principle. The Minister did
not '‘explain why he proposed this. Appar-
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enily the idea is held that the man on the
land can stand any kind of taxation.

Mr. Thomson: He is getting it well in
the neck.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Yes.
He has had it in the neek during the last
few weeks, The water rates have been in-
ereased from 3d. to 1s. in the pound.

The Minister for Lands: Nothing of the
kind.

Mr. Lambert: It is a terrible thing to
think that they will bave to pay for their
water.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: We
lassed the Bill here, and unfortunately it
passed another, place, inereasing the maxi-
mum rale from 5d. to 1s. in the pound.

The Minister for Lands: We bave power
to strike u rate of 5d. now, but they are
only paying 3d. Do not make statements
that amount to misrepresentation.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: [ repeat
that we passed the Bill here, and another
place passed it too.

The Minister for Lands: It did not raise
the rate a fraction.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: It gave
power to raise it.

The Minister for Lands: That is quite a
different matter.

Mr. Mann: Then why did you want it?

The Minister for Lands: To use in some
arcas where there is now no water.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: I have
been taught that when we are dealing with
legislalion we must expect the worst that
the House says may happen, to happen, and
it generally does bappen in the end. T do
not know if members thought that in pass-
ing that Bill it would be necessary to im-
pose a rate of 1s. 1f they did not intend
that the Government should go beyond 5d.,
as provided in the Act, why were we asked
to allow them to go to 1s.7?

The Minister for Lands: In some cases
the water could not be provided for that.
1f the rate could not be struek, it would
mean that the farmers would not get any
water.

Hon., 8ir JAMES MITCHELL: The
work has been done previously by agree-
ment. 1t is one thing for people to say
they are willing to pay—

The Minister for Lands: One man is to
be allowed to stand out while another man
has to pay for it.

1481

Hom. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: It is an-
owmer thing for the Government to say they
are going to lax people right through the
country, and that they will have to pay for
their water whether they want it or not.
I know more about these matters than the
Minister does.

The Minister for Landz: You know what
you say is ineorrcet.

Mr. Lambert: You did not bother about
what the goldfields had to pay.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: The
Government will charge up to 1ls. There is
ne doubt about that. They said so.

The Minister for Lands: We said we
would not do it.

Mr. Lambert: What abont the 1s. Gd. in
the pound that the goldfields had to find
until ihey had paid for the water secheme?

The Minister for Lands: What has
witter got to do with it?

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: We are
dealing with the tax. It is impossible to
o on increasing the taxes.

The Minister for Lands: Put the pokition
fairly and scuarely, and do not make mis-
representations.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: [ am
not nisrepresenting the position. 1 can-
mot. nnderstand why, when one is repeating
the words of the Bill, one shonld he thought
unfair.

The Mimster for Lands: You say it so
uften that you will come to believe it.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: I know
it is so. Now we are asked to give greater
power under this Bill, and to impose an-
other tax.

The Minister for Lands: This is what
has heen asked for by your people.

Haun, Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Never.

The Minister for Agriculture: Who are
your people?

The Minister for Lands: [ admit you de
not represent the farmers.

Hon, Sir JAMES MITCHEILL: 1 do not
misrepresent them.

The Minister for Lands: You are doing
so in this case.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: That is
more than I ean say for some members in
this House.

The SPEARER: Order!

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: It may
he a laughing matter with some members.
They are not going to pay. They will live
comfortably in DPerih, and go to picture
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shows or other attractive entertainments.
What we have to do is {o consider seriously
this new proposal. There is to-day a ver-
min tax, and we have vermin boards deal-
ing with the question. Inspectors and
other people arc employed throughout the
State. All that is expended to-day will be
expended when this Bill is passed. All that
happens to-day in conneection with the ad-
ministration by the boards will happen
when the Bill is passed.

The Minister for Agrieulture: That is
not so. Wherever vermin rates are paid
to-day they will cease if the Bill passes.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: The
vermin rates ave not affected by this pro-
posal.

The Minister for Agricultare: Vermin
boards will not be required to tax for the
destruction of dingoes while this Bill oper-
ates. It iz a matter for themselves.

Hon. S8ir JAMES MITCHELL: The ver-
min rate as it applies to-day under the ver-
min boards system will stand.

The Minister for Agrieulture: It is no use
trying to convince the hon. member.

Hon. Sivr JAMES MITCHELL: 1t is the
duty of every member to read this Bill care-
fuliy and compare it with the Aet. That i3
what we are paid to do, and what we ought
to do. The Minister proposes to tax holders
of pastoral lands to the extent of 1d. in the
pound and to levy a tax of 14d. in the pound
against agricultural land. He proposes to
collect from the pastoral lessee on the ordin-
ary bosis of taxation. Pastoral leases, of
course, are not valued, but for taxation pur-
poses the valuation is arrived at by laking
what the lessee pays as rent and multiply-
ing it by 20, the result being regarded as
the taxable unimproved value of the land.
If a man pays £1 for 1,000 acres of pastoral
land, the unimproved value is assumed to be
£20. Thbe Minister, thevefore, will tax {hat
1,000 acres of pastoral land to the exfent
of 1s. 8. On the other hand, the Minister
will {ax 1,000 acres of agricultural land at
Bruee Rock, for instance, where the unim-
proved value is £2—if i3 more in some in-
stances—and that means that the tax on
that 1,000 acres of agricultural land will
be £4 3s. 4d. That is to say, the Minister
will tax 1,000 acres of agricultural land ffty
times as mueh as he will tax 1,000 acres of
pastoral land in the Murchison distriet. I
do not know whether members representing
agrieultural distriets agree with that pro-
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posal. It is largely an acreage benefit in
these distriets.

Mr. Angelo: The pastoral country will
earry a sheep to 12 acres, but the agricultural
lands should earry a sheep to the acre.

The Minister for Lands: You will lose
more in one night from dogs than the whole
thing wouid cost in five years.

Mr. Angelo: That is so.

The Minister for Agrieulture: I have had
that experience myself.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: However,
the benefit is largely on an acreage basis.
If we take it that 10 acres of pastoral land
on the Gascoyne will earry one sheep, it
will be seen that to proteet one sheep in the
Gaseoyne, the tax will be one-fifth of a
penny per sheep. If it takes four acres of
land in the South-West to carry a sheep,
the tax will be 4d. per sheep. Let us be just
and reasonably fair. T am not prepared to
ask the land owners in the South-West to
pay twenty times as much for the protection
of a sheep there as the land owner has to
pay in the Gascoyne.

Mr. Marshall: You have not protested
during years past against the people in the
North paying 50 times as much as those in
the South-Wesl, in order to keep down the
dogs.

Hon, Sir JAMES MITCHELL: It would
have come well from the member for Mur-
chison {Mxr. Marshall) if he knew that, had
he himself protested. I did not know of it,
and it would take a good deal to convince
me.

Mr. Marshall: Your land in the South-
West has been protected for years hecause
of the payments made in the North to keep
down the dingoes.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Dingoes
were destroyed on the land referred to be-
fore the hon. member was born and before
he cuts his wisdom teeth they will still be
destroyed in the North.

Mr. Chesson: Do you say that it takes
four acres to keep a sheep in the Beverley
district?

Mr. Angelo: That is merely an exaggeru-
tion.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: There are
4,000,000 sheep on 28,000,000 acres held in
the South-West, and that works out at a
sheep to seven acres,

Mr. Angelo: That is becanse the dogs
have eut down the flocks.
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Hen. 8Sir JAMES MITCHELL: We are
hiere to legislate for the whole State and not
merely for the spot we come from.

Mr. Chesson: The Bill is for the Siate
as a whole; it is not legislation for one part
only.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Of
course, and therefore the State as a whole
zhould | ay a reasonable amount and we
should not say that a man holding 1,000 acres
in one part should pay 30 times as much
as & man holding 1,000 acres elsewhere, It
is not fair, Neither, if we regard it from
the standpoint of the protection of a sheep,
is it fair to say that for that protection a
man in one part should pay one-lifth of a
penny as againsi the payment of 4d. by a
man in another part of the State. Again,
the Minister said he would receive £34,000
from this tax. I do net know how those
figures were prepared for the Minister.

The Minister for Agriculture: The only
difference is that vou have taken the im-
|-roved values and we have taken the unim-
proved values. You refer to improved values
at Bruce Rock.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: That is
not so.

Mr. Thomson: That is the basis on which
they are taxed, as suggested by the Leader
of the Opposition,

‘The Mipister for Agriculture: I have to
pay the tax and I should know something
about if.

Hon. Siv JAMES MITCHELL: We can
take the Minister’s own figures and eonvinece
Lim that he is wrong. .

The Minister for Agriculture: You are
speaking of taxes on the improved value,
not on the unimproved values at all.,

Hon, Sir JAMES MITCHELL: T assure
. the Minister that I am dealing with the unim-
prroved values in each ease.

The Minister for Agriculture: But I have
to pay.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Not for
the whole State. At Bruce Rock the unim-
proved value is £2, although land is selling up
to £8, including improvements.

Mr. Thomson: And people are tazed
there on an unimproved value of £2.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: On the
19th Deecmber, 1924, the Minister gave this
information to the House. He told us that
ihe total taxable unimproved value of the
lands amounted to £40,000,000. Of that total,
£19,000,000 represented the wuinmproved
value of agricultural land, while the unim-
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proved value of Crown lands, such as pas-
toral leases, was £2,500,000. When those
fizures were made up last the land had not
been revalued. If we may take the Treas-
vrer’s estimated revenuve from land tax as an
indication, this amount will be nearly double.

The Minister for Agriculture: And a good
job.

Hon, Sir JAMES MITCHELL: I have no
objeetion to that, because the value is there
in the land to-day. The Minister, however,
says it is a good job, because he will get
more taxation! On the 3Minister’s own
figures, however, it shows that on the basis
of £19,000,000 as the unimproved value of
agrieultural land, he will get, under the Bill,
£39417, or nearly twice the sum he men-
tiened. On the pastoral lands, based on the
figures I have quoted, the tax will be £10,414.
Thus, he will get, on the basis of his own
figures, taxation amounting to £49,831. On
the top of that there will be the additional
tax due to the increased unimproved values of
the land. Therefore, the Minister will get
not Iess than £60,000. Yet he told the House
that he would get only £34,000!

The Minister for Agrienlture: You know
the tax is not to exceed 1d., and it may not
be 14d.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: When we
are dealing with taxation we must deal with
the worst that can happen. If the Minister
docs not want this amount of money, let him
Say so. .

The Minister for Agriculture: What a
pessimist you are when in opposition,

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: I am not
pessimistic, but I do not want to act like a
fool here.

The Minister for Apriculture: You are a
Jeremiah.

Mr. Chesson: Do you exempt from your
ealeulations the people who have vermin-
proof fences round their holdings?

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: There
will be no money spent there. If everyone
{enced their properties there wounld he no
neressity for this.

Mr. Chesson: Then how can you arrive 4t -
your figures?

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: I am bas-
ing them on the figures supplied to this House
by the Government. Under the Minister’s
proposal, timber leases are to be included.
I do not kmow why that is so, because
there are no grazing rights in connection
with {imber leases.
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Mz, Chesson: Timber country is a breed-
ing ground for dingoes.

Hon, Sir JAMES MITCHELL: In the
Routh-West a timber permit gives the holder
the right to cut the timber, but it may be
that the Minister will give grazing rights over
the same area.

Mr. Heron: That has been done already:.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Then that
man will have to pay. Are both the timber
lessee and the man having grazing rights
to pay? I do not know how the payments
will be arrived at. Then, too, this money has
to be collected by the Minister, and he will
gpend it as he pleases. He will get this
460,000 and disbarse it as he likes. Under
the Bill he could pay £5 for a dingo at Nor-
tham and £1 for a dingo at York, No one
ean say him nay, He keeps a war chest, sets
up a treasury unto himself, and the Pre-
mier and the Government will have ne eon-
trol over him, Are we going to agree to that?
The Minister has no right to have absolute
control over the money to do with it as he
pieases. He could collect all the money in
the South-West and spend it in the North, or
alternatively he could colleet it in the North
and spend it in the South-West,

Mr. Lambert: YWho do youn suggest shounld
udminister it?

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Not the
hon. member, I suggest it should be neces-
sary for this wmoney, when collected, to be
re-voted by Parliament to the Minister or
somebody else.

Mr. Lambert:
Act?

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: We have
taken possession of most of the money col-
lected under that Act. Tn any event, the
department’s estimates of expendifure have to
he submitted to Parliament for approval.

Mr. Lambert: Tt is the first time you have
made a protest against a department spend-
ing money.

Hon. Sivr JAMES MITCHELL: I have
always asked Parliament to vote the money
T reguired. If all revenue were to be dealt
with jn the way proposed in the Bill, we
should not require Estimates at all. Much
as I respect the judgment of the Minister, I
do not propose to support a Bill containing
2 clause giving to the Minister this extro-
ordinary unlimited power.

Mr. Lambert: The subsidy on a few din-
gnes!

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Very few
Jingoes but a great many pounds, and it is

What about the Forests
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the pounds we are discussing, Then the Min-
ister provides in the Bill a penalty on the
nun who defrauds the Government. In South
Stistralia only 5s. is paid for a scalp, and
the Minister fears that if he gives £1
or £2 for a sealp South Australian
scalps will be brought over the border. The
penalty is £60. The man whe will do that
sert of thing is the worst kind of thief, and
il eaught should be imprisoned.

Mr. Heron: 1t is being done now as be-
tween road board distriets.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: That is
not fair, but it is a great deal worse when
the sealps are brought in from another
State. The punishment provided does not
fit the erime af all. I repeat that this is a
tax upon a tax. The boards are to exist.
I think the Minister, rather than taking
the matter in band in this way, ought to
aholish the boards and control the whole
thing himself. Certainly that would be
very much better than having two taxes for
the same purpose.

Mr. Lambert: [t is only a tax for services.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: It is a
tax superimposed on the existing tax. It
may be regarded by the Minister as a simple
Bill. He says it is payment for serviees.
But sometimes we pay too much for ser-
vices. We shall be paying far too mueh if
we pass the Bill. The tax will yield, not
what the Minister says, buf twice that
amount, and it will be paid very largely by
the agrieulturists, It is true that if they
fence their holdings with vermin-proof
fencing they will be exempt. That is right.
But there arve many other holdings where
there are no dogs, no pesis, and where con-
sequently vermin-proof fencing i not
wanted. Those holdings have just as much
right to be exempted. )

The Minister for Agriculture: My own
is amongst those, yet I will pay the tax.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: What
is the difference between the Minister’s
holding, served with a six-wire fenee to
keep the sheep in, and another holding
served with a vermin-proof fence? Land
at Osborne Park, where there are no dogs,
will be taxed under the Bill, 8o, too, will
land at Jandakot he taxed.

Mr. Heron: So it should be.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Bui
there is nothing there to proteet the hold-
ings against.

Mr, Heron: Because the other holdings
are keeping the dogs hack.
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Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: There
have been no dogs at Northam for the last
35 years.

Mr. C. P. Wansbrough:
pioneers eradicated them.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Of
course they did, and that without any tax
at all.

Mr. Chesson: They would soon find the
dogs there again were it not for the people
outhack.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL : The
people in the older settled districts have
fought the dogs and eradicated them, and
the pest cannot get in there again. In the
South-West, of conrse, where kangaroos
and rafs are plentiful, the dogs increase
rapidly. The trouble is that people in dis-
tricls where there are no dogs will have to
pay tax, and that upon the unimproved
value ot land, which has appreciated in
valoe because of its wheat-growing capa-
hilites.

Mr. C. P. Wansbrongh: And the only
vermin they have, the rabbil, is not in-
cluded in the Bill.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Much
land within reasonable distance of Perth
has become very valuable. That will be
taxed. T do not know whether we have in
ibe House the voting strength to defeat the
Bill, but at any rate we will test the feeling
of the House.

The Mimster for Lands: In the Toodyay
distriet the dogs are so bad that the sheep
Liave to be brought in at night?

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Where-
abonts in Toodyay is that? The distriet
reaches almost from the sea to Newecarnie,
200 miles.

The Minister for Lands: Around Dowerin
there are any number of dogs.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Well, I
shall let the dog experts have a say on this
matter. The Minister proposes to impose
taxation on land that has acquired consid-
erable value, not because of its stock-carry-
ing capabilities, but becanse of its agrieul-
tural capabilities. Orchard land and wheat
land will be taxed on the value as found
by the Taxation Departmenf. We are not
entitled to levy tax after tax mpon the
people. The Government were never in 2
hetter position fo do something to eradicate
this pest than they are in to-day, when the
finapces have greatly improved. We are
roing to collect over £8,000,000 this vear,
one way and another. Of that money surely

Because the
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some amount could be set aside for this
work without imposing a special tax! If
it is to be the custom to impose special
taxation for every purpose, I do not know
where we shall get to. High taxation is
retarding the progress of the country now.
Factories eannot start bere, because our
taxation is so much higher than that in the
Eastern States.

The Minister for Agrienlture. What has
this to do with the Bill?

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: Every-
thing, because the Bill is a taxation mea-
sure. We bave in fhis couniry very many
taxes. The Federal taxation strikes the
man on the land very heavily; our own
taxation strikes him heavily, and the local
anthorities tax him heavily. Then we have
waler rafes and vermin rates, and on top of
the vermin rate we are to have this new
‘vermin rate. I hope we are getting near
the end of the many taxes imposed upon
the individual.

The Minister for Agriculture: Why does
he pay a water rate?

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL:
cause he is compelled to.

The Minister for Agrieulture: But why?

My, Chessgn: For services rendered,

The Minister for Agriculture: Does he gei
no service for it?

Hon. 8ir JAMES MITCHELL: T would
be glad to be eross-examined by the Ministe
if you, Bir, could permit bim to do it. Of
course he gets some service, but I do nol
know that the Minister wounld like to pay
the excessively high rates that have to he
paid for water.

The Minister for Agrieulture: Because ]
did not lean on the Governmant for wafer.

Mr. Thomson: There are not many
farmers who have leaned on the Govern.
ment for water.

Hon, Sir JAMES MITCHELL: There
are many farmers paying water rates to-
day who had their lands well supplied with
water hefore the goldfields scheme was pu
in. There are men who are paying the water
rates and not drawing on the scheme,

Mr. Lambert interjacted.

Hon. Sir JAMES MITCHELL: It is
shocking admission that for 20 years the hon
member did not see a cup of water. My
sympathy cannot go ocut to him; he musi
have had something decidedly better. Othe:
people are paving for many eapfuls of wates
that they do not get. I hope the House will
not agree to this measure, and I suggest &«

Be.
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the member for Coolgardie that he had bet-
ter devote careful attention to the Bill Le-
fore he endorses it.

MR, LAMBERT (Coolgardie) [9.32]:
Apparently it has become a practice to put
up a wail on behalf of the farmers directly
the slightest amount is charged them for
services rendered,

Hon. G. Taylor: Do not you think there
is justification for it after having heard the
Leader of the Opposition?

Mr. LAMBERT : T cannot remember hav-
ing heard ihe Leader of the Opposition to
greater disadvantage or more barren in argu-
ment than he was to-night.

Mr. Teesdale: Except when he voted
against you on the “Tin Lizzy” Bill.

Mr. LAMBERT: Under this measure the
farmers and pastoralists will be called upon
to pay an amount representing only a very
glight insurance for the service rendered.

Mr. Sampson: It means an added tax.

Mr. LAMBERT: 1 agree that taxation is
high. Iivery industry in this State, with the
possible exceptions of drink, gambling, and
farming, is outlawed; no one has any in-
terest in it.

Mr. Latham: Surely yon do not include
farming! That is taxed heavily enoungh.
The farmers pay all the taxes.

Mr. LAMBERT: Largely on account of
onr unfortunate position in Federation, all
our activities are overtaxed, but Parliamem
will not deal comprehensively with taxation
in order to levy it upon those who shonld
hear it.

Hon. G. Taylor: You are on the side to
do it.

Mr. LAMBERT: We have ot the power
to get it done. Members know that taxation
in this State is too heavy. They know that
we ought to be taxing absentees, who are
merely using the State as a medium for
amassing wealth while they pay taxation
elsewhere. To strike a rate for vermin da-
struction is analogens to imposing a rate for
any other service performed by the Govern-
ment. If there is one question surpassing
all others in importanee, it is that of deal-
ing effectively with the vermin menace, and
it ean be dealt with rightly only by asking
those to pay who benefit from the lands of
the State. Why should a poor man on a
living wage be asked to contribute to the
eradieation of vermin?

Mr. Thomson: He does not contribute.

Mr. LAMBERT: He does!

[ASSEMBLY.]

Mr. Latham: He does not.

Mr. LAMBERT: The Premier bas sug-
gested that, on account of the state of the
finances, it will be possible fo draw from the
gencral revenue to subsidise vermin boards
for the eradication of the dingo. Why shouid
we ask the people generally to perform a
serviee for the pastoralists of the State?

Mr. Latham: Who pays the taxes?

Mr, LAMBERT: The worker, to a very
great extent. It would be unfair to draw
mioney from general revenue for the eradi-
cation of vermin. I do not suggest that
the pastoralists are not prepared to pay for
effective serviee to eradicate the pests that
are cansing so much damage. I Delieve the
day will come when the whole of our lands
right through to the South Australian bor-
der will be ecarrying flocks and herds, but
it will firs! be necessary to adopt a compre-
hensive scheme of water comservation. All
sections of the IHouse extend the greatest con-
sideration to the farmers and they deserve
it, but they shounld at least pay for effective
gervices rendered by the State. The destruc-
tion of vermin will not be effectively under-
taken until we view the question from a
really broad standpoint. )

Hon, G. Taylor: Under this Bill some
people will be taxed who will get no ser-
vices.

Mr. LAMBERT: That is true. The mem-
ber for Murchison eould cite many instanees
where, immediately efforts to deal with the
dingo pest were relaxed, a big encroachment
occurred.

Mr. Sampson: Do you support the impo-
sition of the tax in a road hoard like Bays-
water?

Mr. LAMBERT: Yes, all over the State.
Why make exemptions. apart from the gen-
ernl exemption contained in the Bill for the
liencfit of the man who has already provided
for the safeguarding of his flocks?

Mr. Sampson: There is no possibility of
dogs at Bayswater.

Mr. LAMBERT: The petty amount that
would be involved in places like Bayswater,
Osborne Park, and Jandakot——

Hon. G. Taylor: That kills your arem-
ment about paying for services rendered.

Mr. LAMBERT: T hope that members
will not be influenced by the mere argument
that the passing of this Bill will inflict upen
pastoralists and farmers additional taxa-
tion. ‘

Hon. G. Taylor: And nothing for il.
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Mr. LAMBERT: 1 do not say that. The
Lhon. member knows that a few dingoes in
an hour could do damage equivalent to the
swall amount that would be paid by a hig
pastoralist. .

Hon, G. Taylor: Such a man should pay.

Mr. LAMBERT: Yes. I think I would
he prepared to go so far as the hon. mem-
ber and say that, if we eould exempi cer-
tain areas where no service can be per-
formed for the tax, we should do so. 1 do
not know whether it would be possible to
make exemptions of that kind, but if it was,
I would go that far.

Mzr. Lutey: The people outside are stop-
ping the invasion.

Mz, LAMBERT: To a great extent they
are. I know of one Murchison property
where cffeetive steps were taken on three
sides to combat the dingo pest, but on the
other side where no provision was made,
considerahle damage was done. It is prob-
ably impossible to exempt certain portions
of the State. However, we should deal with
this matter more comprehensively. WWhen
I was in the Eastern States recently, I saw

a machine designed to exterminate rabbirs,’

and a verv simple and effective contrivance
it was,

Mr, Thomson:
with rabbits.

Mr. LAMBERT: I refer to that only to
show the lack of knowledge displayed in
our own State where we have a big spend-
ing department dealing with the question.
I hope members will take a broad view and
insist that where serviece is given, if shall be
paid for by the people who benefit.

This Bill does not deal

MR. ANGELO (Gascoyne) [9.42]: I am
afraid the Leader of the OQpposition cannot
count upon my vote fo assist in defeating
the Bill. I intend to support the second
reading.

Mr. Teesdale:
it defeated.

Mr. ANGELO: A Bill to deal with the
rapidly increasing dingo and fox menace
has heen asked for by the pastoralists and
tarmers for the last six or seven years. I
consider that every member representing a
pastoral or farming community should vote
for the second reading. Then, if he is not
satisfied with all the provisions of the Bill,
he should do his best in Committee to get it
altered in conformity with his ideas. We
are told that this Bill is to benefit only the

He does not want to see

1487

farmers and pastoralists. I wish to correct
that statement. The pastoral and farming
industries of this State are so important
and so far reaching and exercise such a big
effect on the financial position generally as
to react upon every person living in the
State. If the dingoes are allowed to in-
crease so rapidly as to cause the flocks of
sheep to disappear, merchants, traders,
transport workers, shearers, and in - fact
every class of the community will suffer.
The dog menace must be checked, and
checked immediately. If we look back upon
the papers we find that deputation after
deputation has approached various Minis-
ters of Agriculture, and pointed all this out.
Mr, Heron: Every time.

Mr. ANGELO: Yes. They have brought
forward their desirc that some Bill like this
should be introduced. Every time Ministers
have gone into the eounfry the matter has
been bronght before them. Governments in
the past have done very little in the way
of checking the dingoes.  They have not
done half enough. That can be proved by
the fact that dingoes are rapidly increasing
in number, as well as those that are erossed
with the one-time domesticated dog. Our
Ministers from time to time have not rea-
lised the importanee of this matter,

My, Teesdale: We would have had a
good Bill years ago but for another place.

Mr. ANGELO: Last year, after several
efforts, we had a Bill brought down to deal
with the subjeet, but unfortunately it re-
eeived the axe in another place. I hope this
Bill will not meet with the same fate.

Mr. Heron: Some there will meet with
the axe if it does.

Mr. ANGELO: From what I gathered
from the nutteranees of pastoralists and
farmers, and their representatives, I should
say what they wanted was the legislative
machinery necessary to enable them to look
after this menace on their own hehalf.

Mr. Teesdale: That is the point.

Mr. ANGELQ: They were not in a posi-
tion to do it themselves, and invited the
Minister for Agriculture, as the official head
of the pastoral and agricultural industries,
to give the lead. They said, “We want yon
to call a conferenee, and allow us to discuss
the hest methods of dealing with the dingo
and fox menace. Give us the necessary
legislation and we can tax ourselves, and
control the campaign for getting rid of
these pests.”
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Hon. G. Taylor: How did you get on
with the last lot of money you had for the
Gascoyne?

Mr. ANGELO: The Gascoyne people arc
sticking to the agrecment they made with
a previous Government, and I defy any
member to prove otherwise. The pastoralists
go further and say that, because there are
large areas of Crown lands, they expeet the
Government to contribute {o the fund. That
is what they hoped the Bill would provide
for.

Mr. Thomson: Crown lands are the breed-
ing grounds.

Mr. ANGELO: Yes. That is why the
pastoralists and farmers, justly and fairly,
ask the Government to give their quota to-
wards the funds for the extermination of
the pest. They are quite prepared to tax
themselves. What they want is o uniform
rate throughout the State. There should also
be a uniform bonus paid for the destruetion
of dingoes.

Mr. Thomson: That is one of the reasons
why they wanted the Bill.

Myr. ANGELO: Yes. Most road hoards
have heen paying a  considerably higher
bonus for the destruetion of dogs than their
neighbours, with the result that they have
been compelled to pay bonuses for dogs that
have come from other districts as well as
their own. This makes the uniform bonus
a necessity, Members have asked why cer-
tain poriions of the State should contribute
when there are no dogs there. We might
just as well ask why the mining industry,
through the general tax, was asked to contri-
bute towards cleaning up the rinderpest at
Fremantle. They had to contribute their
gquola towards the general tax on that ocea-
sion.

Mr. Sampson: There are some cattle on
the goldfields.

Mr. Lutey: They were the frontier then.

Mr. ANGELO: Yes. If a smallpox out-
hreak occurred in Fremantle, the pastoralists
of the Norvth-West would have to pay their
share in suppressing it. Knowing what this
pest will mean to the people ot the Stale,
T do not think it is too much to ask them
to contribnte. Tf the woo! industry disap-
pears, we shall have only wheat and one or
two other smaller things left with which to
carry on. Catfle owners should contribute,
hecanse they have to a large extent been
responsible for the inerease in the pest.
They have done nothing in their areas.

[ASSEMBLY.]

Mr. Heron: And also for the defeat of
the last Bill.

AMr. ANGELO: Yes. They have dune
nothing te cope with the pest. | know of n
sheep station adjoining a cattle station,
where the pest lias heen far more serious
ihan it has been on other sheep stations
away from ecattle runs. Members should
understand what this pest will mean to the
Btate. The Minister quoted some intevest-
ing figures last night, and was kind enough
to recall an article that T read last year taken
from the “Bulletin” of the 31st July, 1921
The article is headed “The Tragedy of West-
ern New South Wales.” Tt says--

A group of men who know every phase of

the {ragedy communieate this as their consid.
cred appeal to the Parliament and people:—
The following ecomparison of sheep numbers
on properties in the West Darling before and
after the invasion will indicate the cffects of
the dingo:—
The article goes on to give the number of
sheep that were there liefore the dingoces
really started to incrense in numbers, and
_the reduced number that was left after-
wards, Gne station had carried 496,000 sheep,
but following upon the dingo pest there
were ne sheep left at the time the article
was written. There are about a dozen sta-
tions whieh earried over a million sheep,
and on these only 41,548 sheep werce left.
The article proceeds—

Similar figurcs could be given as to other
properties, hut the instances arc ample to show
the great loss to the State . . ... By this time
the sheep numbers had fallen from 16,028,022
ta 3,770,345; the prcat Momba station, which
at one time carried 490,000 sheep and returned
7,000 bales of wool from one clip, had gone
right out of sheep and was given over to
cattie; srores of lessees, admirable picneers,
who had fought the degs for years aud under-
stood the conntry and knew its needs, gave up
in despair; thousands of square miles of some
of Australia’s finest sheep country saw the
last merino go; stations which had employed
80 or 90 men all the year round supported less
than half a dozen; Wileanmia, a thriving town-
ship with a population of ever 3,000, drifted
almost beyond recognition; stagnation super-
seded prosperity, and the country was fast
losing the very type of men for whom the Out-
back calls. - Where 1,000 persons arc required
in this country under cattle, 15,000 would be
supported under sheep.

The last sentence is one which every member
should consider. If dingoes are going to
drive sheep away, and sheep are to be re-
Placed by eattle, it will mean that only one
nian will be required where 15 were required
hefore. There will be no droving, no shear-
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ing or transport of wool to ports. It is de-
sirable that the House should tackle this men-
ace to the best of ifs ability. If anything
happened to the wool industry it would have
a serious effect upon the finanees. 1 have
many friends who have lived in the Gascoyue,
and who have travelled through the country
ohout which the article was written. They
say it is similar country, and that what ap-
plies to one would certainly apply to the
viber unless the menace were checked. In
1891 there were 106,421,068 sheep in Austra-
li. Tn 1922 there were only 78,303,261
sheep.

Hon. G. Taylor:
the dryv season.

Mr. ANGELU: To a certain extent, but
the dingoes are aecountable for the fact that
some of the stations are turning from sheep
to cattle. They say that sheep raising can-
not be carried on in safety in order Lo make
ilie necessary profit. In 1918 we had 7,183,-
747 sheep in Western Australia. In 1923, the
last figrures available, the numbers had fal-
len to (G,093,867. I do not say this reduetion
was due to the dingoes, hut if we had had
our natural development, and it had not
Leen retarded by the dingo pest, there would
not have been this reduction. \When speak-
ing in Queensland the other day the Prime
Minister said—

That was partly due to

The woel industry was the backbone ef the
country, and the bhackbone of our finances.
The question of.the continuance of our great
wool industry and the maintenance of Ans-
tralia’s position in the world was probably the
inost vital one in Auwstralia at the present time.
If wool failed every single person in the Com-
monwealth would be affected.  The werld to-
day wants wool, and wool wasg the best in-
dustry we had in Australia. The world’s sup-
plies of wool were short, and if they could in-
erease Australia’s production by 25 per cent.
they coulid sell the whole of their wool. In-
creased  production  might mean deereased
prices, but that might be an advantage, and
not a disadvantage by the way.

We all know that Ansiralia produces 24 per
cenf. of the wool of the world, and alse pro-
duces 70 per cent. of the merino wool of
the world.

Hon, G, Tavlor:
the lot.

Mr. ANGELO: Yes. It appears that
Australia is specially favoured, among the
couniries of rhe earth, for the production
of merino wool. Therefore. no nenace
must be allowed to develop that will affect
this wreai industry, Australian  exports,
according to the latest fisures available,

And the best wool of

1489

in 1921 totalled £117,870,000, of which sum
pastoral products represented £71,974,000,
and wool by itself approximately G1llu
millions sterling. Wool represented 48 per
cent. of the whole export trade of Aus-
ivalia. These figures refer only to export
from Australia, and take no note of our
home consumption. 1f the latter were in-
cluded, Lthe value would be a great deal
mote. Western Australia’s wool exports
last year were of a value of £4,631,000. Tt
i1s surprising that a small eommunity like
that of Australia, comprising only 5%
millions of people, can produce 70 per cent,
of the merino wool of the world. The
dingo is not only dangerous as regards
wool production, but is a bhig obstacle
to further development. Two years ago,
thanks to the member for Leonora, mem-
bers of this House had the opporiunity
of paying a visit to that town. Those of
us who had not previously seen that part
of the State were greatly surprised at the
wonderful area of splendid pastoral land
practically lying idle there, We were told
that there were 23,000,000 acres of the
particular elass of country we saw, with
water available almost evevywhere at a
depth of 30 or 40 feet. At that time
the land in question was carrying about
12,000 head of big stoek. Tt should be
carrying at least 2,000,000 sheep.

Hon. . Taylor: It will be, too, with
fencing.

Mr. ANGELO : The development and
peopling of that huge province—for such
it is—has been held back and is still being
held baeck by the dingo menace. The same
thing applies in a smaller degree to our
huge wheat belt. Every one of our farms
should he carrving sheep. Last year 1
travelled through practically the whole of
the eastern wheat belt, and wherever 1
went I heard of the desire to earry sheep.
All the farmers want to carry sheep, but
are afraid to do so because they cannot
afford the necessary wire netting and know
what it would mean if they attempted to
earry sheep without proper provision in
that respeet. Every encouragement should
be given to these people to get rid of the
dingu, and thereby epable themselves to
earry sheep, because increase in our flocks
means increased population, increased
earnings, and inereased wealth for the
whole of the State. What is required is
some legislative autbority to enable the
producers to tax themselves and control
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their own finanees in this partienlar diree-
tion. They need a coniribution from the
Government because of the area of Crown
lands at present creating breeding grounds
tor the pest. One or two matiers in the
Bill will certainly have to be amended.
The measure includes a clause bringing the
whole State under the provisions of the
Vermin Aet of 1918, It will be remem-
bered that there was serious objection to
the inclusion of the North-West in thar
Act, the provisions of which were not at
all applicable to that portion of the State.
Anyone could see that they were designed
for the smaller holdings in the south, One
glaring provision of this nature was the
insistence that waters should be fenced. [
do not know how the Minister of the day
thought that the pastoral lessee was going
to fence an artesian bore drain ronning
10 or 12 miles. 1t is said that the
pastoralists of the North could fence
their windmills and troughs. 1t would be
impracticable to fence the troughs at night,
because in the hot areas the sheep come in
to drink at night. Under the taxing sec-
tiou of the measure, the North-West pas-
toralist with 1,000,000 acres would bhave
had to pay £500 annvally, as against £50
pavable by the holder of a similar arvea in
the south. A point as to which the present
Bill does not inform us is what will be the
Government’s contribution to the fund. Tn
answer to an interjeciion of mine last night
the Minister said the Government would
subsidise the fund, But we wani to know,
to what extent? What will be the amount
of the Government contribution? That is
a thing we shall have to consider seriously
in the Committeec stage. Another provision
which I hoped to see in the Bill, but which
ts not there, is the appointment of a cen-
tral advisory board to confrol the funds,
and dictate the poliey of the various
boards. The Minister, no doubt, will tell
us that that will he done by the various
vermin boards; but we know very well that
the vermin boards will not he unanimous
regarding methods for dealing with the pest.
Therefore, a central authority should he
created fo dictate a policy of eradieation,
and also to control the funds. I am per-
fectlv certain that the central board could
be almost an honorary board so far as pas-
toralists and farmers are concerned, If,
however, farmers and pastoralists are to
contribute two-thirds of the total amount of
the fund, each industry should certainly be

[ASSEMBLY.]

represented on the admimstrative authority
by one or two members The remaining
inetubers, or member, as the case might be,
would of eourse be nominated by the Gov-
ernmenf, The measure would be adminis-
tered by Government officials, but the people
providing the sinews of war, the money,
ghould certainly have some say in the ex-
penditure, and as to the policy or policies
to be pursued in carrying out the eradicu-
tion of the pest. Another provision of the
Bill is that any person who has fenced his
avea shall be exempt from taxation. With
that [ heartily agree, but I think the Minis-
ter could improve the provision by allowing
w group of produeers who have adjacent
properties to put a ring fenee round their
hoidings.  That would be an cconomieal
method of fencing. The Minister will agree
that it is rather bad economics to bave sev-
eral divisions of netting fences when one
netting fence could do the job just as
effectively, T hope that during the Com-
mittee stage the Minister will agree to an
amendment in that direetion The question
of netting is highly important. After all,
to exterminzte dogs by trapping is one way
to et rid of them; but netting is undoubtedly
the most effective method, hecause it deals
not only with the dog, but also with the
rabbit pest.

Mr. Teesdale: The cost of netting is £90
a mile.

. Mr. ANGELO: T have obtained quota-
tions fo-day, and find that rabbit netting
is procurable at £37 per mile in Perth, while
dog netting, which would be erected above
it, costs £13 per mile. The cost of the com-
plete fence per mile would, therefore, be
£30}; and in addition there is the cost of
erection.

Hon. G. Taylor: It takes £30 per mile to
do the work to-day.

Mr. ANGELO: The matter is so im-
portant that the Government should seri-
ously consider the advisableness of raising
a gpecial loan for the purchase of wire and
dog netting, or ils manufacture in the State.
We want thousands of tons of netting to
deal with the pests effectively. Only the
{iovernment can do it, beeause nearly all
our holdings, hoth pastoral and farming,
are mortgaged, though perhaps only to a
small extent. To obtain the necessary moneys
in purchase neiting themselves, the holders
would have to give a sccond or a
third mortgage. If the Government did the
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business, however, they could get the first
claim over the property on account of net-
ting supplied. I am perfectly certain that
the present mortgagees would not objeet
to the Government becoming first mertga-
zees 1n such eircumstances, as the value of
their security would be enhanced. I repeat,
the matter is so urgent and important that a
special loan is warranted. T think the Min-
ister will agree that in addition to this Bill
an amendment of the Dog Aet is required.
Sheep owners in the vicinity of towns are
heavy losers by siray town dogs getting in
amongst their sheep. As these dogs usually
do the killing at night, it is very hard in-
deed to discover the eulprits. Then there is
the auestion of native dogs. Am amendment
of the law is necessary in that direction. I
have known the police in my district te
come home from a tour and report having
shot from 200 to 300 dogs, mostly found
around the native camps The law allows
the aborigines to have one dog each, but
unless checked they collect as many as 20
and 30 apiece. I welecome the Bill, and 1
will support the second reading, while hop-
ing that in the Committee stage the measure
will be improved. I trust that the Minister
will listen to reason, especially on the poinf
that this proposed fund shall be controlled
by a board, one member of which will he
appointed by the Minister, and the remain-
der by the pastoralists.

On motion by Mr.
journed.

Thomson, debate ad-

House adjourned at 10.17 p.m.,
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BILL—INDUSTRIAL ARBITRATION
ACT AMENDMENT.

Second Keading.
Debate resumed from the previous day.

HON. E. H. HARRIS (North-East)
[4.35]: To rectify the unjust econditions
that exist in employment and to minimise
strikes, the Legislature in its wisdom
passed an Arbitration Act and made it
compulsory for litigants to go before the
Arbitration Court. Experience has made it
perfectly plain that it is useless to expect
to gel 100 per cent. peace. From time to
time different conditions will exist, and
while we were hopeful when the measure
was placed on the statute-book that it
would prevent strikes, we find that it can-
not maintain peace. I am afraid the spirit
of mankind will have to alter considerably
before we reach that stage beecause, not-
withstanding the bitter experience of want
and poverty to women and children, strikes
still oceur and we may look forward to
forther outbreaks in future, The stubborn,
reckless natores of different men, not only
amongst employers but also on the em-
ployees’ side, have not recognised the duty
they owe to the community, but at their
own sweet will they have brought about in-
dustrial eonflict. We should therefore re-
tain arbitration as a means to settle indus-
trial strife. I mention this because Mr.
Holmes suggested that we should abolish
arbitration on the ground that it did not
prevent strikes, It might be opportune to
refer to the carliest recorded strike which
was mentioned in a Brisbane journal re-
cently, This oecurred about 308 =.c.

Hon. J. Cornell: There were some before
that. Was it Adam or Eve that strock?

Hon. E. H. HARRIS : The earlier
sirikes may not have been settled so amic-



